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ABOUT Champion Technology
(STOCK CODE: 92)

Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(www.championtechnology.com) is a global technology
group offering innovative solutions in communications
software, wireless, telematics, e-commerce, security,
online entertainment and e-gaming. The Group’s
solutions are dedicated to bettering and enriching
the lives and lifestyles of people, promoting health
consciousness, accident prevention and life safety, as
well as probity and responsibility in the conduct of the
online industry.

Throughout the years, the Group has focused on
industries supported by government policies. In line with
China’s national policy to promote its culture industry,
the Group has expanded its activities in culture-related
technologies and related services, aiming at providing
customised solutions for the trading and promotion of
art, antiques, cultural products and collectibles for the
consumer market.

With total assets of over HK$9 billion and a global
presence in over 50 markets, the Group serves its
customers through its network of regional offices and
distributors, and three Hong Kong listed companies,
namely Champion Technology Holdings Limited
and Kantone Holdings Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”), and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, whose shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Exchange. The
Group also includes a subsidiary in the United Kingdom
previously listed on the London Stock Exchange.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHRE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—%-=f —T-F —FF ZT-TF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FhT FHT FHT FHT
Results E3+
(for the year ended 30 June) (BEAA=THLEE)
— Turnover —HEE 4,452,636 3,410,999 3,125,455 3,011,768 2,923,103
— Adjusted profit* —EN () 284,390 202,053 161,166 209,830 402,068
- Adjusted EBITDA" —REFAFE - BB MER 1,849,543 1468486 1447544 1297733 1,300,914
BiH B (EHR)
- EBITDA —KRHAFE  BE- HER 1,665,087 1,364,312 1,381,824 1,211,933 1,002,064
#iHBF
— Attributable profit —EEEF 62,618 62,478 56,763 88,649 74,630
- Dividends BB 18,570 24,261 43,251 22,274 19,968
— Earnings per share (in HK cents) —BIRERCEML) 1.02 1.04 1.15 2.14 2.24
Financial Position BHEHRR
(as at 30 June) (RAB=1AR)
— Cash and cash equivalents* ~-RekResE 330,804 280,101 465,247 278,611 322,706
— Total assets - BERE 9,409,381 9,327,509 9,349,104 8,967,425 8,871,166
— Equity — gz 7,506,177 7,450,716 7,382,232 7,062,277 6,973,345
Financial Ratios g i
(as at 30 June) (RAB=1AR)
— Current assets/Current liabilities —REEE/THEE 9.52 5.95 348 2.91 3.36
— Assets/Equity —BE/x 1.25 125 127 127 127
— Sales/Assets —REBEE 0.47 0.37 0.33 0.34 0.33
— Gearing ratio —BRiEmLE 0.03 0.03 0.05 0.06 0.06
* Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bondand ~ * RITARE - TRAREFATEEZDREMERLER
other non-cash items
+ Excluding overdrafts + TEEEX
Twenty-one Years of Sustained Profitability Z2&—+—FR&ERF
(in HK$ million) (B8&%mT)
Adjusted EBITDA 1,850
Rt AFE  BE - WERBHZAMNGEHE) 1,729
[ EBITDA
REEAFIE B ST R B2 BT .
Attributable profit 1,441 1,448
JE AR5 F 1,301 1,208

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2013.

The overall business environment has remained challenging, with China experiencing slower GDP growth amidst
economic uncertainties in Europe and the US. The Group managed to sustain profitability by leveraging on a balanced
yet diversified product portfolio and geographical markets, as well as continued investment in the development of
technologies with innovative applications which deliver value to our customers worldwide.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group’s financial performance is summarised below:

° Turnover increased 31% to HK$4,453 million

° Profit for the year rose 2% to HK$100 million

° Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment) went up 26% to HK$1,850 million
° Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$63 million

° Earnings per share was HK1.02 cents

The Group maintains a positive financial position with net cash, adheres to a prudent financial management policy, and
does not enter into speculative derivatives or structured product transactions.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In anticipation of continuing tight liquidity and market volatility, future corporate earnings are expected to be under
pressure. The Board has therefore opted for a prudent cash management policy and recommends a final dividend
of HKO.1 cent per share by way of scrip dividend, with a cash alternative. Taking into account the interim dividend of
HKO0.2 cents per share, total dividend per share for the year would be HKO.3 cents; and total dividend for the year would
amount to HK$19 million.

OUTLOOK

There are signs that the global market conditions will turn more stable in the coming year. However, many challenges
and uncertainties remain. The anticipated unwinding of the US stimulus policy, even at a more gradual pace than
originally expected, and uncertainties in the Eurozone economies will continue to weigh on the pace of global recovery.
The slowdown in China’s economic growth also posts significant risks to the Group’s business operations. At the same
time, the markets for many of our products and services are characterised by rapidly changing technologies and evolving
industry standards. Changes in market conditions caused by new technologies, emergence of new competitors,
consolidations among our customers and competitors, as well as changes in regulatory requirements can bring
volatilities to our businesses. Meeting all these challenges require consistent operational planning and shrewd execution
and investment in innovative and enhanced product mix that serves the needs of our customers globally.

Going forward, the Group will continue its prudent approach in investing in complementary businesses that have good
growth prospects. In particular, the Group will continue its efforts in pursuing business in the culture sector, which is in
line with China’s national policy to promote its culture industry alongside its rise as an economic power.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to the shareholders and business partners of the Company
for their continued support, and our fellow directors and staff members for their hard work and valuable contribution.

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

27 September 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review (the “Year”), the Group’s
turnover increased 31 percent to HK$4,453 million from
HK$3,411 million in the previous year (the “Previous
Year”). Profit for the Year rose by 2 percent to HK$100
million as compared with HK$98 million for the Previous
Year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$62.6 million (2012: HK$62.5 million). Earnings per
share for the Year was HK1.02 cents (2012: HK1.04
cents). The Group’s gross margin remained stable at
12.3 percent (2012: 12.9 percent). EBITDA increased by
22 percent to HK$1,665 million from HK$1,364 million
for the Previous Year. In view of the less than optimistic
outlook for the global economy, with the exception of
China and a few emerging markets, the Group continued
to adopt a prudent approach for its investment projects
pending signs of recovery. During the Year, the Group had
recognised impairment losses of HK$158 million (2012:
HK$104 million) for deposits and prepaid development
costs for systems and networks as well as impairment
losses of HK$26.8 million (2012: nil) for development
costs for systems and networks. Excluding the impairment
losses, adjusted EBITDA for the Year was HK$1,850
million, compared with HK$1,468 million for the Previous
Year.

The Group continued to review and exercise cost control.
Distribution costs remained stable at HK$36.4 million
(2012: HK$36.7 million), while general and administrative
expenses increased 19 percent to HK$228 million (2012:
HK$192 million) as a result of increased spending in the
new operating segment of cultural products. Research
and development costs expensed decreased by 30
percent to HK$12.2 million (2012: HK$17.4 million). Total
staff costs included in direct operating expenses and
general and administrative expenses remained stable
at HK$128 million (2012: HK$126 million). Amortisation
and depreciation expenses increased by 24 percent to
HK$1,560 million (2012: HK$1,263 million) as a result of
the continued roll-out of new projects.

Finance costs for the Year increased by 40 percent to
HK$4.8 million (2012: HK$3.4 million), as a result of the
rise in interest rate.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the Year, China’s economy remained stable
despite some sectors showing signs of slowing down.
Exports were affected by the uncertain state of many
western economies, while weaker than expected imports
indicated a decline in consumption. Amid concerns over
slowing growth, investment sentiment had turned cautious
and the pace of market activities subdued. The Group
continued to focus on innovative communications and
security solutions and services customised to achieve high
reliability and high integrity. Enhancement of product mix,
introduction of new solutions and services, and revenue
generated from the sale of products related to cultural
business contributed to an increase in sales.

The Group’s strategic investment in In-Car telematics
solutions, anti-radiation products to counteract radio
transmission from mobile phones, as well as smart logistic
solutions, continued. Meanwhile, in an effort to boost
its offerings of security solutions, the Group has been
working with international partners to offer comprehensive
customised solutions for integrated security systems.

For the Year, China sales increased by 28 percent to
HK$3,460 million as compared with HK$2,701 million for
the Previous Year.

In Europe, the unstable economic climate continued to
affect the Group’s trading position. The austerity measures
adopted by governments across Europe slowed spending
and delayed project rollout. There was little evidence
of growth across the Eurozone, and in place was an
increasing sense of adjustment fatigue in Europe, resulting
in pressure on governments to relax their austerity
programs. Against this background of an unsettled
economy in Europe, the Group achieved satisfactory
results for the Year, recording a turnover of HK$657
million, an increase of 28 percent as compared with
HK$512 million for the Previous Year. The improvement
was attributable to the Group’s business in emergency
services, NHS (National Health Services) projects and fire
control sectors in the United Kingdom (“UK”) which picked
up after several quarters of slowdown due to spending
cuts. Sales in Germany were flat, but there was continuing
demand for the Group’s products in some European
markets despite the weak economic fundamentals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)

Kantone’s turnover was HK$1,953 million and profit for
the Year was HK$83 million, representing corresponding
increases of 37 percent and 3 percent as compared
with HK$1,429 million and HK$80 million respectively
for the Previous Year. Sales in China were in line with
the country’s economic development where Kantone
continued to focus on customised solutions and services.
In Europe, fiscal tightening across the board posed
great challenges to Kantone’s business operation, but
momentum was maintained in the UK market where
Kantone’s customised solutions had proved competitive
and were in demand. In particular sales of the Group’s
patented personal security product registered double-digit
growth year on year. New business has been secured in
the UK healthcare sector. Elsewhere, Kantone recorded
satisfactory growth from the Australasian and Middle
East markets in sales of traditional systems products and
personal security solutions. Significant opportunities also
exist in the US for Kantone’s personal security solutions,
and a demonstration system was successfully installed
during the financial year. In anticipation of the increased
demand, Kantone’s manufacturing facilities in Malaysia
were revamped and a new production line was added
during the Year.

For e-gaming and online entertainment, Kantone
continued to provide integrated gaming technology
solutions, online payment channels and sales networks,
with revenue steadily increasing. In line with new
legislations and provisions governing the operation of
lottery on Mainland China, Kantone adjusted its business
model accordingly. Investments in the e-lottery project
were subject to periodic review to determine if progress
was in line with original plans, and if the anticipated benefit
could be achieved.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”)

Digital HK recorded a loss of HK$2,662,000 on turnover
of HK$3,066,000 for the Year, compared with a loss
of HK$2,752,000 on turnover of HK$3,003,000 in the
Previous Year. It continues to seek investments to
broaden its income streams. In particular, it leverages its
expertise and e-commerce capabilities to engage in a
number of sectors, including those of health and culture
via the promotion and trading of products and provision
of related services, which are in line with China’s national
policy to promote its culture and health industries.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive with a
low gearing.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had HK$331 million (2012:
HK$280 million) liquid assets made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash. Current assets were approximately
HK$3,250 million (2012: HK$2,114 million) and current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$341 million (2012:
HK$355 million). With net current assets of HK$2,908
million (2012: HK$1,758 million), the Group maintained
a high level of financial liquidity. The gearing ratio of the
Group, which calculation was based on the Group’s total
borrowings of HK$249 million (2012: HK$256 million) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$7,506
million (2012: HK$7,451 million), was 0.033 (2012: 0.034).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s total borrowings mainly
comprised bank loans of HK$209 million (2012: HK$216
million) and overdrafts of HK$40 million (2012: HK$40
million). The bank loans comprised an amount of HK$192
million repayable within one year, HK$4 million repayable
in the second year and HK$13 million repayable in the
third to fifth year, and the overdrafts were repayable on
demand. As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable either on demand or within one year. As
at 30 June 2013, bank loans of HK$21.7 million (2012:
HK$25.9 million) were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying value of HK$7.9 million (2012:
HK$8.1 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing. The
Group finances its operation and business development
by a combination of internally generated resources, capital
markets instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company bearing interest at floating rates. As all the
Group’s borrowings were denominated in their local
currencies, the currency risk exposure associated with
them was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.



Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for were approximately
HK$183 million (2012: HK$191 million). These
commitments were set aside for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, and development of
systems and networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2013, the Group employed about 1,200
staff around the globe. Staff costs for the Year were
HK$128 million (2012: HK$126 million). Remuneration
is determined with reference to market terms and
the performance, qualifications and experience of the
individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly
salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. In recommending the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will consider
factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable
companies and time commitment and responsibilities of
the relevant director.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SCRIP DIVIDEND
SCHEME

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company on 28 November
2013, the Board has proposed a final dividend of HKO.1
cent per share for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012:
HKO.1 cent per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 5
December 2013. Taking into account the interim dividend
of HKO.2 cents (2012: HKO.3 cents) per share paid on 16
May 2013, total dividend per share for the year would be
HKO0.3 cents (2012: HKO.4 cents); and total dividend for
the year would be HK$19 million, compared with HK$24
million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of
scrip dividend, with an alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof) in cash in
lieu of such allotment (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting by
the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited of a listing of and permission to deal in the
shares to be issued pursuant thereto. A circular setting
out the details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with
the form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the
Company as soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued
under the Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants
will be despatched to those entitled thereto on or before
27 January 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 4 December 2013 to 5 December 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the above
final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok, CBE, GCM, Comm
OSSI, Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, SBS, JP, 66, is
the founder and Chairman. He is also the Chairman and
an executive director of both Kantone Holdings Limited
(“Kantone”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital
HK”), subsidiaries of the Company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board and the GEM Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”)
respectively. Professor Kan holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and an Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters
Degree from the University of Northern Virginia, USA. He
has over 40 years of experience in the computing and
telecommunications industries. Prior to setting up the
Group in 1987, he was the general manager in charge
of Asiadata Limited, a computing services subsidiary of
Cable & Wireless PLC.

Professor Kan has received a number of prestigious
awards from several governments and various local
and international professional bodies in recognition of
his contribution to the community and the industry.
Government awards include Commander of the most
Excellent Order of the British Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty
Queen Elizabeth Il (2006); Commendatore dell’Ordine
della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana by the Italian Prime
Minister Hon. Romano Prodi (2006); the Hong Kong SAR
Government’s appointment as a Justice of the Peace
(2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur by the
Government of France (2007); and Silver Bauhinia Star by
the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009). In April this year,
he was awarded the FUECH Grand Cross of Merit for
Outstanding Consular Work by the Federation of European
Associations of Honorary Consuls (FUECH). In July this
year, he was appointed Ambassador Extraordinary and
Plenipotentiary of Hungary.

Professional awards include Governor’s Award for Hong
Kong Industries (1989); Young Industrialist Award (1992);
Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy (1993);
Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Chinese Studies
(2005); and Honorary Professor of Szent Istvan University
in Budapest, Hungary (2011).

In civic duties, Professor Kan is currently the Honorary
President and former Chairman (2001-2011) of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council, and
Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance (1999-present). He
is a member of the Council of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and the Election Committee for the Hong
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Kong representatives of National People’s Congress
of China for three terms from 2002 to 2017. He was a
member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee
for the IT sector for three consecutive terms from 1996 to
2012. He also served twice on the Exchange’s Corporate
Governance Working Group during 1994-1995 and
1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing Committee
of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He was
the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Information and Communications Technology
Services Advisory Committee from 2006 to 2010 and ICT
Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom Business
Partnership from 2004 to 2007. He had also served as a
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industry Advisory
Committee for 10 years from 1997 to 2006.

Professor Kan had been an independent non-executive
director of CLP Holdings Limited for 9 years from
2001 until he retired in 2010 to take up the additional
responsibility as Honorary Consul of Hungary in Hong
Kong and Macao from 2011.

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 57, is the Company’s executive
director and Chief Executive Officer, as well as a non-
executive director of Kantone and Digital HK. He is
responsible for formulating the Group’s overall policy
and development strategy as well as the Group’s
global operations and management. Prior to joining the
Group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions
in several international companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a Master’s degree
in Economics from the University of Alberta in Canada.
In 2006, Mr. Kan completed the Oxford Advanced
Management Programme at the Said Business School of
the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its IT
Committee. He is a member of the CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee of the Hong Kong SAR Government,
the Design Council of Hong Kong and the Consultative
and Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited. Mr. Kan is also an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.



LAI Yat Kwong, 64, is the Company’s executive director
and Chief Financial Officer, with responsibility for its
financial and accounting policy and control. He is also
the Chief Executive Officer (Acting), Chief Financial Officer
and an executive director of Kantone, as well as a non-
executive director of Digital HK. He joined the Group
in March 1994 as Vice President of Internal Audit and
Control. In July 1997, he took on responsibility as the Chief
Financial Officer of Kantone. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and has over 41 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Since January
2013, he has been an independent non-executive director
of Chinalco Mining Corporation International, shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Exchange. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Trony
Solar Holdings Company Limited from October 2011 to
February 2013.

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 57, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She is the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of Digital
HK, as well as a non-executive director of Kantone. She
joined the Group in 1992 as its Executive Vice President
with responsibility for its corporate development. She has
over 25 years of business experience including 10 years in
investment banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. She is currently a member of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee of the Office of the
Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data; Digital 21
Strategy Advisory Committee; the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance); the Project Assessment
Panel of the Small Entrepreneur Research Assistance
Programme (SERAP); and the Advisory Group on
Eliminating Discrimination Against Sexual Minorities. She
is a General Committee Member of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and Vice Chairman of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council, Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and member of the Hong
Kong Corporate Counsel Association. She also serves
as Mentor under the Mentorship Programme of the Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation and
is the Honorary Secretary of Hungarian — Hong Kong
Innovative Business Council.

Terry John MILLER, 74, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since May 1992.
Previously, he held the position of Deputy Chief Executive
at Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited, and was the
Regional Director, Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and is the former president of the
Hong Kong Institute of the International Association of
Financial Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, 83, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since February
2000. He is the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Digital HK. Mr. Knight is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Asian Security and Investigation
Services Limited. He has over 20 years’ experience in
the field of copyright protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security adviser to a number
of major organisations. Mr. Knight is a member of the
International Association of Police Chiefs and the Hong
Kong Intellectual Property Society; and a fellow of the
British Institute of Directors and the British Institute
of Management. He is also a former President of the
American Society for Industrial Security (Hong Kong
Branch).

Frank BLEACKLEY, 76, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Kantone. He was formerly the Managing Director of
Chubb China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the former
Chubb Security Group, a manufacturer and distributor of
security and safety products and systems headquartered
in the United Kingdom (“UK”). He has considerable
experience in the management and business development
of joint venture companies in East Asia.
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LEE Chi Wah, 56, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since July 2009. He
is currently the Chief Technology Officer of a consultancy
firm and has over 31 years’ professional experience with
several international IT&T organisations for major roles
in the areas of technical project development, customer
services and sales management, including serving the
Group from 1988 to 1994 with his last position as Vice
President, Technology and Chief Technical Officer. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Western Sydney in Australia and
a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Electronic
Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
From November 1995 to March 2012, he was a Chartered
Professional Engineer — IT & E (MIEAust CPENng) and
Chartered National Professional Engineers Register (NPER)
of The Institution of Engineers, Australia.

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 57, has been the Company
Secretary since 1992. She is a solicitor practising in Hong
Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Kantone and
Digital HK.

Francis KAN, 65, is Executive Vice President, Systems
Development, and has held positions of responsibility in
information technology, both in Hong Kong and abroad,
for over 20 years. Since 1994, he has been responsible
for the operations and expansion of the Group’s systems,
overseeing all internet-related activities and alliances with
major partners. Mr. Kan has a Master’s degree from the
University of Alberta in Canada.

Iris KOO Kin Hing, 49, is Senior Vice President, Finance,
responsible for overseeing all financial operations of the
Group. She is based in Macau. Before joining the Group
in 1989, she worked at an international accounting firm
where she had gained valuable experience. She holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

’] O CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FUNG Kin Leung, 52, is Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics. He is responsible for managing the
Group’s research and development capacity to facilitate
its global operations. He is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Fung has over 25 years’
experience in software and product development. He
joined the Group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was
promoted through the ranks to his current position. In
recent years, he has been focusing on the development of
information delivery systems to enhance wireless internet
applications. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and
Electronics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master’s degree in Electronics Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as
well as a member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 52, is Vice President
of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for the Group’s
international operations, overseeing international
clients’ requirements for enterprise solutions. He is also
Managing Director of Kantone’s Brazilian operations
with responsibility for running and developing business
in South America. He joined the Group in 1997 and set
up from its inception the business in Brazil. He holds a
Master’s degree in Aerospace Engineering from Sup’Aero
in France and an MBA from the London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 48, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business at Kantone in September
2005. He is the founder of a member company of the
Group which is a pioneer systems developer and service
provider in paperless betting systems in China, and owns
two invention patents in telephone betting systems. He is
a graduate of Tsing Hua University in Computer Science.

Roy GOSS, 70, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.
He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert
in finance and telecommunications, having served in the
Middle East and Macau with Cable & Wireless PLC for
more than 17 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable &
Wireless PLC.



Stephen GENTRY, 57, is Head of International
Businesses at Kantone and Chief Executive of Multitone
Electronics Plc (“Multitone”), a member company of
the Group, with responsibilities for formulating the
overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is
a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 50, is Managing Director of German
operations at Kantone. He joined the Group in 2008
and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management in the electronics industry. His earlier career
covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales
organisation of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.

Cindy MAK Man Yee, 45, is Vice President,
Administration and Logistics. She is the Group’s primary
liaison point with external organisations and coordinates
a wide range of the Group’s operations in logistics,
corporate resource development and purchasing.
She joined the Group as a management trainee after
graduating from the University of Hong Kong in 1990
with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences, and was
promoted through the ranks to her present position.
Ms. Mak also holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration, and has completed a business programme
of the eMBA studies at the Hass School of Business,
University of California Berkeley. She serves on the Hong
Kong IT Alliance as its executive committee member.

Joanne CHIU Yim Fan, 42, is Vice President,
Compliance, with responsibility for promoting good
corporate governance practices for the Company in
accordance with the relevant listing requirements in Hong
Kong. She is also Vice President, Human Resources,
responsible for formulating and implementing the Group’s
human resources policies. Ms. Chiu graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree
in Arts. She also holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration and is a Professional Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Human Resource Management. She
joined the Group in 1994,

Teresa TONG Seek Fan, 47, is Vice President,
Operations. She runs the Group’s call centre and is
also responsible for customer care, product design and
the retail aspects of the Group’s business. She holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration. She
joined the Group in 1990 and is a member of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council as well as the
China Investment, Development and Co-operation Sub-
committee of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin, 48, is Vice President, Business
Development, with responsibility for sales and marketing,
identifying distributors and sales agents, as well as liaising
with suppliers for the Group’s products and services.
Ms. Leung has served the Group in a number of key
areas since the start of operations in the 1980’s, having
previously worked with Cable & Wireless Group in Hong
Kong.

Gary CHOY Kin Chung, 43, is Vice President, China
Investment. He oversees business investment in China
and plays a pivotal role in the execution of the Group’s
growth strategy in China. He is also a member of the
Group’s Investment Committee and a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Choy holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Georgia Institute of
Technology, Atlanta, Georgia, USA and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration (Executive MBA Programme)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1992 and worked in a number of divisions within
the Group.

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 41, is Vice President,
e-Commerce Projects at Digital HK responsible for
overseeing technical management and systems
support. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Electronic Engineering from
the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong. He has also
completed a business programme of the eMBA studies
at the Hass School of Business, University of California
Berkeley. Mr. Sia has been with the Group since 1995
and has worked with a number of divisions within the
Group. He also serves on the Hong Kong Radio Paging
Association and the Hong Kong IT Alliance as an
executive committee member.

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok (the Chairman of the
Company), Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (an executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company)
and Mr. Francis KAN, a member of the Group’s senior
management, are brothers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of goods and licensing (including
sales of systems products, software licensing and customisation,
provision of services and leasing of systems products,
provision of e-lottery services and sales of cultural goods) and
holding strategic investments in advanced technology product
development companies and e-commerce projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 26 and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements. An interim dividend
in scrip form equivalent to HKO.2 cents per share, with a cash
option, was distributed to the shareholders during the year. A final
dividend in scrip form equivalent to HKO.1 cent per share, with a
cash option, is proposed by the directors.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
The Company'’s reserves available for distribution represents
the aggregate of dividend reserve, general reserve, special
reserve, capital redemption reserve and the retained profits of
HK$1,909,628,000 (2012: HK$1,864,937,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 30 June 2013 are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity as at 30
June 2013 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive directors:
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive director:
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Terry John Miller

Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Mr. Frank Bleackley

Mr. Lee Chi Wah

In accordance with Bye-law 87 (1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung, Mr. Terry John Miller and Mr. Francis
Gilbert Knight will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract with
the Company for a term of up to the date on which he/she shall
retire by rotation in an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. The executive
directors do not have any service contract with the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and two of its subsidiaries, Kantone
Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(“Digital HK”), has a share option scheme under which eligible
persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone, Digital HK
or any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options
to subscribe for shares of the Company, Kantone and Digital HK
respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company, Kantone
and Digital HK are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2013, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers were as follows:

Name of director Capacity

E=pg L8

Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
RN EEHIR

Securities of the Company
ARAIESH NEIL £
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
8 S

Securities of Kantone
ERES AR
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
RN EEHIR

Securities of Digital HK
HIEBBESR NEIL £
Notes:

1. 1,730,651,800 shares of the Company were held by Lawnside
International Limited (“Lawnside”). Lawnside is beneficially wholly
owned by Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok. As at 30 June 2013, Lawnside
had interests in approximately 27.72% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company. Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed
to have corporate interest in the shares of the Company held by
Lawnside.

2. 4,125,813,235 shares of Kantone were held by the Company. Prof.
Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the
shares of Kantone held by the Company.

3. 106,050,000 shares of Digital HK were held by the Company and
5,670,520 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside. Prof. Paul
Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the shares
of Digital HK held by the Company and Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company
or its subsidiaries, none of the directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
at 30 June 2013 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries, other than
Kantone and its subsidiaries (“Kantone Group”) and Digital HK and
its subsidiaries (“Digital HK Group”), had the following transactions
with Kantone Group and Digital HK Group:

SEERANRBER S 2Hi

RAFEER - ARAREMBRAR(FBRENBR
A EBRERDARBBEREREMBAR([HEF
BEE DB QEEBEELBBEEEEETT
5325

Transactions with
Digital HK Group
HYEEEEE
ZX5

HK$°000

TET

Transactions with
Kantone Group
HEERE

ZX5
HK$°000
TET

Fees received for the provision of office premises and  $&pk A SR U BRI A =

facilities, and management services, on cost basis %R EIEREZ ER 900 540
Fees received for treasury services U ER B AR 75 2 B A 682 -
Annual fee and technical fee paid (Note) ST E R T E A (P EE) = 39

Note: Digital HK Group had provided e-payment platform services to a
subsidiary of the Company at a fee chargeable with reference to
comparable market price as agreed.

During the year, the Group paid sponsorship of HK$1,350,000
(2012: HK$900,000) to an entity with common key management
personnel of the Company.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the
above transactions were carried out in the usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms and are in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Apart from the above, details of other connected transactions are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The aforesaid transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are exempt from
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
the provision of services to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at the 30 June 2013, the following person (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Capacity

513

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Lawnside (Note) (Ffiz¥)

Note: See Note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” section above.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
according to the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2013.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 30 June 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate
customers and suppliers through these distributors and
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the
Company after considering factors such as the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, salaries paid by
comparable companies, and time commitment and responsibilities
of the relevant director.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
27 September 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in the year
ended 30 June 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholder value.

The Board held 8 meetings during the year ended 30 June 2013.
All directors attended these meetings. The composition of the
Board during the year was as follows:

Executive directors

Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok* (Chairman)

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung* (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong

Non-executive director
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Terry John MILLER

Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT

Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY

Mr. LEE Chi Wah

* Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung are brothers.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company held 1
general meeting. All directors attended the meeting.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to
the date of this report, Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok, Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung, Mr. LAl Yat Kwong, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr.
Terry John MILLER, Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank
BLEACKLEY and Mr. LEE Chi Wah engage in business activities
in their respective fields as continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong has participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The directors also participated in
other trainings and professional developments such as attending
or holding seminars, giving speeches or studying reading materials
relating to the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and
regulations; business management; or the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are separate and performed by different individuals with a clear
division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for
a term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the
directors shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Code and the Bye-laws of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 3 members, comprising Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry John MILLER (independent
non-executive directors), and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (executive
director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the executive
directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines
set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of remuneration.
All members attended these meetings.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2013 is set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements. For the year ended 30 June
2013, the remuneration payable to 10 members of the senior
management of the Company is within the range of HK$0 to
HK$1,000,000; whereas the remuneration payable to 4 members
of the senior management of the Company is within the range of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr.
Frank BLEACKLEY, Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry
John MILLER (independent non-executive directors), Ms. Shirley
HA Suk Ling (non-executive director), and Prof. Paul KAN Man
Lok (executive director). This Committee is chaired by Mr. Frank
BLEACKLEY.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
after his/her appointment. All directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, one third of the directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each
annual general meeting of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - continued

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will adopt a policy concerning
diversity of Board members to comply with the recent amendment
of the code provisions of the Code.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the year
ended 30 June 2013.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2013 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. All members attended these meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY, Mr. Terry John MILLER
and Mr. LEE Chi Wah (independent non-executive directors), and
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive director). The Chairman
of this Committee is Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set
out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and its
financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control
matters, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its terms of
reference.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual results as well as its internal control system
and its corporate governance matters including reviewing the
Corporate Governance Report for inclusion in the Company’s
Annual Report. All members attended these meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the fee for the Company’s
external auditors for audit services was HK$6,473,000 (2012:
HK$6,275,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating to
taxation matters was HK$500,000 (2012: HK$320,000).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2013, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30
June 2013.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code.
The purpose is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Ms. Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, as its company secretary. Its
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders through various channels including announcements
and annual and interim reports published on its website at
http://www.championtechnology.com and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at http://www.championtechnology.com
or in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at 3rd
Floor, Kantone Centre, 1 Ning Foo Street, Chaiwan, Hong Kong.
The directors, company secretary or other appropriate members
of senior management respond to enquiries from shareholders
promptly. The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, chairmen
of board committees (or their respective delegates) and external
auditors attend the annual general meeting and are available to
answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders may
also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
continued

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business (including any
proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company had amended
its Bye-laws with the following effects:

a) to allow the Company to provide financial assistance for
the purchase of, or subscription for, its shares following the
recent amendment of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Companies Act”);

b) to allow the transfer of shares of the Company in any
manner permitted under the Listing Rules as the recent
amendment of the Companies Act permits paperless share
transfers, subject to the Listing Rules;

C) to remove the exemption which allowed a director of the
Company to vote on any board resolution in respect of any
contract or arrangement concerning a company in which
the director together with any of his associates were not
in aggregate beneficially interested in 5% or more of the
issued shares or voting rights of any class of shares of such
company in compliance with the new requirements of Rule
18.44 of the Listing Rules; and

d) to simplify the solvency test for payment of dividend
and making of distribution as permitted by the recent
amendment of the Companies Act by removing any
reference to the Company’s issued share capital and share
premium account in the solvency test.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEIRE

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 26 to 103, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 September 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEsREtEEKER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 #ZEZ—Z—=F NA=1+HIFE

2013 2012
—BE-=% —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Turnover () 6 4,452,636 3,410,999
Direct operating expenses EREERA (3,904,348) (2,970,608)
Gross profit EFlmE 548,288 440,391
Other income and gain H WA R 7 17,593 10,948
Distribution costs DA (36,390) (36,654)
General and administrative expenses —RRATHE H (228,113) (191,972)
Impairment losses recognised for development g 2 45 & 4848 B 3Rk 2R
costs for systems and networks FTiER 2R EEE 14 (26,800) -
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and gt 4 K I8 FI3EAL AR
prepaid development costs FTiEsR 2 M EEE 19 (157,656) (104,174)
Research and development costs expensed #7745 &2 FaZs Ak A 1 (12,181) (17,370)
Finance costs BB AR 8 (4,803) (3,436)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity FE(E—E A v e 18 (4) (21)
Profit before taxation B B 9 99,934 97,712
Taxation credit ke 10 - 167
Profit for the year RERHT 99,934 97,879
Other comprehensive income: Hi2m¥as
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — EH/&A[E1H Fi8%s
to profit or loss: 2R
Exchange difference arising on translation FABINESREFTEE 2
of foreign operations MR =58 1,815 1,150
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEEBEEE 101,749 99,029
Profit for the year attributable to: AL ARFERF
Owners of the Company VN/NETEZZ=PN 62,618 62,478
Non-controlling interests JEFRIR A R AR 37,316 35,401
99,934 97,879
Total comprehensive income for the year EHAEE 2K
attributable to: pk:
Owners of the Company ARAHERA 63,362 63,125
Non-controlling interests FEIRRR AR A RS 38,387 35,904
101,749 99,029
Earnings per share FREF 12
— Basic —H&K HK1.02 cents B4l HK1.04 cents 7l
— Diluted — N/A FERA  HK1.03 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mePBIRR R

At 30 June 2013 R—Z—=%,xA=1+H

2013 2012
—E2-=F —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NERE 13 58,741 62,565
Development costs for systems R
and networks (BN 14 4,335,747 3,911,482
Goodwill EES 15 36,795 36,795
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 16 628,148 628,148
Interest in an associate il 1) /NG P 17 - -
Interest in a jointly controlled entity P—EEEES ¥ ER 18 475 479
Deposits and prepaid development costs e RIBAFREKA 19 1,099,752 2,574,430
6,159,658 7,213,899
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE& 20 24,536 20,621
Trade and other receivables TEUTE 5 R E MR 21 2,894,381 1,812,878
Taxation recoverable A EIFTE 2 10
Deposits, bank balances and cash T BB RES 22 330,804 280,101
3,249,723 2,113,610
Current liabilities wEAE
Trade and other payables B8 5 REAMERR 23 104,995 94,633
Warranty provision RERE 24 1,246 1,229
Customers’ deposits ZXEIRS 3,483 3,483
Bank borrowings — amount due within BITEE-R—FRA
one year ZIIHA 25 191,719 215,870
Overdrafts X 22 39,833 40,164
341,276 355,379
Net current assets REEEFE 2,908,447 1,758,231
Total asssts less current liabilities BERERRBDAR 9,068,105 8,972,130
Non-current liabilities FFBEE
Bank borrowings — amount due after BITEE-N—F%
one year 21| HA 25 16,989 -
Retirement benefit obligations RIREFIEE 9 46,133 50,389
63,122 50,389
Net assets EEFE 9,004,983 8,921,741
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 30 June 2013 R=Z—=F/XA=+H

2013 2012
—E2-=F —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAEL

Capital and reserves BRARFEE
Share capital A& 28 624,243 612,502
Reserves & 6,881,934 6,838,214
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZNA &) A A fE(EHEs 7,506,177 7,450,716
Non-controlling interests LR A s 1,498,806 1,471,025

9,004,983 8,921,741

The consolidated financial statements on pages 26 to 103 were  H26 A EF103EMH R A M BHREEN T —=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ~ FNAZ+tHABEESIAZ REETIE - WH T

27 September 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: EERRESF
PAUL KAN MAN LOK f§34 LEO KAN KIN LEUNG 2R
DIRECTOR #Z% DIRECTOR %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERAERSER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 = —ZF—=F A=+ HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ONGIE 2PN
Capital Non-
Share Share  Dividend redemption  General Capital Merger Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
-3 FR e
RE ROGEE RERE BORE -REE E1EE AURE EXRE R9ER Rit REED ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKEO00 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000
TEr FTAT TExr TEn THL TEr  FThn
AtT July 2011 WZZ——FE+HA—H 601411 2091866 6,014 50 1,366,003 125,036 8,358 1533 3,181,961 72382232 1453420 8,835,652
Profit for the year KERRF - - - - - - - - 62478 G478 35401 97,879
Exchange difference arising on RESNERREFEE L
translation of foreign operations EizE - - - - - - - 647 - 647 503 1,150
Total comprehensive income for the year N4 2 iz 058 - - - - - - - 647 62478 63125 3504 99,029
Dividends for the year TEERS
~ interim —HH - - 1813 - - - - - (18139 - - -
—findl —%8 - - 6% - - - - - 61 - - -
Divdends paid ERRE - - (13,059 - - - - - - (13059 - (13059
Issue of shares as scrip dividend RARREMETRG 11,091 - (11,001) - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling SATHEERRR ER
inerests Be - - - - - - - - - - (21 (221
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary ~ HEHAHBA R 2B - - - - - - - - 2N ) 2,21 -
Capital contributions from non-controlling - FEZ2RR AR
sharefolders TE - - - - - - - - - - 17463 17463
Acquisition of addtional interest WEE-EHBARZ
ina subsidary BN - - - - - - - - 063 069 5709 (070
11,091 - m - - - - - (5,843 539 (18299 (12940
At30 June 2012 WZZE——F A=+H 612502 20913866 6,125 50 1,366,003 125,036 8,358 2180 3238596 7450,716 1,471,025 8,921,741
T -=FER

BEMEEEERAA

29



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERTEREE®

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B EZ=Z—=F~A=+HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital

RAREEAER

Non-

Share Share  Dividend redemption  General Capital Merger Translation  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium  reserve  reserve

-

feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity

*2R  RE

Bx ROER RERHE RORE KRG ARG CHRRE ERGRE REEN &Y RNER RRAR
HK$000 HKS00D HK$'000 HK$000 HKE000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS0OD HK§'000 HK$000 HKE000

TEr TR TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr  TER TEr  TEr  TEx

At July 2012 WZZ-ZFtA-H 612502 2091866 6,125 50 1366003 125036 8,358 2180 3238596 7.460,7

6 1471020 8921741

Proftfor the year AERRF
Exchange difference arising on RESNEBREFEE L
ranslation of foreign operations ERER - - - -

- - - - 62618 62618 37316 99,934

- - - 44 - 44 1,01 1,815

Total comprehensive income for the year R4 2 E 15 - - - -

- - - 74462618 63362 38387 101749

Dividends for the year TEERS

~interim —hE - - 1238 -
—final - RE - - 6,242 -
Dividends paid BERKRE - - (615 -

Issue of shares as scrip dividend RARREMBEIRG 1,74 587 (12328 -
Dividends paid to non-contraling SO ey ovd

Interests eSS - - - -
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary  HEHHHBAE 2B - - - -
Capita injection to a subsidiary A-ANRARTE - - - -

- - - - (1239 - - -
- - - S ] - -
- - - - - By 6,12

- S (23
- - - AV NI I AT' -
- - - - 39 B 669 -

74 587 iy -

- - - - 038 01 (0605 (18507

At 30 June 2013 RZB-ZHEXAZTH 64243 2092453 6,242 50 1,366,003 125036 8,358 2924 3,280,868 7,506,177 1,498,806 9,004,983

The general reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the Company
(after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid
up capital to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the Company
in 2002.

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus
issue of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of
capitalising the subsidiary’s retained profits and deemed capital
contribution from a substantial shareholder.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 = —ZF—=F A=+ HIFE

2013 2012
—E2-=F —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZBER
Profit before taxation BREATEF 99,934 97,712
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BELREZITE 13,363 12,559
Amortisation of development costs for RGP AZ
systems and networks i) 1,546,987 1,250,605
Impairment losses recognised for development HER N PREARK AR Z
costs for systems and networks REEE 26,800 -
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and ke RENHEENAMER 2
prepaid development costs REY ¢ 157,656 104,174
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERERHEZ
equipment R () 48 G
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITRHMEEZFIS 4,803 3,436
Interest income FEMA (9,152) (7,358)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity JE(E— R RIEHIN ¥ 2 BB 4 21
Operating cash flows before movements in BEECEBAI 2L
working capital Bem 1,840,443 1,461,141
(Increase) decrease in inventories BEZ ($Em)mL (4,410) 4,148
Increase in trade and other receivables e E 5 R AR Z 0 (1,082,464) (584,495)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables ENE S REMBERZEMNCHD) 8,751 (15,820)
Decrease in warranty provision REBH N (20) (42)
Decrease in customers’ deposits BEEE 2R = (31)
Net cash generated from operations BEEXVBREFE 762,300 864,901
Taxation in other jurisdiction refunded HAAEME 2 BITHR R 8 -
Net cash from operating activities EERBEMB VRS FE 762,308 864,901
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHER
Deposits and prepayments paid in respect of BRRGRBERERAZ
development costs for systems and networks BiRe RIENHIE (680,675) (471,900)
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEVE  BERR (10,437) (10,530
Addition of systems and networks NE R AR = (458,562)
Capital contribution to a jointly controlled entity A —f kR N ETE = (500)
Interest received BB 9,152 7,358
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREREREZ
equipment B 1 106
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHMEZRSFE (681,949) (934,028)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERBR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 #EZ—ZT—=F~A=+HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET

Cash flows from financing activities BMETEBZEER

New loans raised MESEZER 208,708 256,000

Redemption of convertible bond BRI ES = (64,341)

Dividends paid BRI (6,125) (13,059)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests S F IR AR S 2 AR B (12,382) (12,274)

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary Y — RPN A RIREIME R - (5,070)

Repayment of borrowings BEEE (215,870) (264,449)

Interest paid BRFE (4,803) (3,436)

Capital contributions from non-controlling FEPRARAR R

shareholders FE - 5,231

Net cash used in financing activities BEFEHECRDFE (30,472) (101,398)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4 RIB& % 22 MORD ) F5E 49,887 (170,525)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ E#13R & RIS =4 239,937 411,187
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes [EREEH 7 FE 1,147 (729)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREAGRAEEE 290,971 239,937
Represented by: BiE

Deposits, bank balances and cash B RITEBEEE 330,804 280,101

Overdrafts BY (39,833) (40,164)

290,971 239,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPBRERNE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 #z=—=

—=FRA=THLFE

GENERAL

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands but
subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange. The functional currency of the Company is
United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, a jointly controlled
entity and an associate are set out in notes 36, 18 and 17
respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied
a number of amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 July 2012,

Except as described below, the adoption of the
amendments to HKFRSs has had no material effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods.

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS”) 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Upon application of HKAS 1, the Group’s statement of
comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the existing
option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 &,

34

B RS MR

ECE-ZFRAZTHIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

— continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)
HK(FRIC)* — INT 20

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 to 2011 cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities’

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other
entities: Transition guidance!

Investment entities®

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial
statements’

Joint arrangements!

Disclosure of interests in other
entities'

Fair value measurement’

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets®

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting®

Employee benefits’

Separate financial statements!

Investments in associates and
joint ventures'

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine!

Levies?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.
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HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

BIRE R 5 MR
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36

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments - continued

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future is expected to have significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets but not on the Group’s financial liabilities.
The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact on application of HKFRS 9.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK(SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control.
In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-
monetary contributions by venturers” will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11
are required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.
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HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier
application permitted provided that all of these standards
are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of these five standards will not have significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, but will result
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will
be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
18 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 July 2013 and
may result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) — continued

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of changes in
defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor
approach” permitted under the previous version of HKAS
19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to
be recognised immediately through other comprehensive
income in order for the net pension asset or liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on
plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are
replaced with a “net-interest” amount, which is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require
retrospective application. The directors anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 19 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 July 2013 and that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 19 may have impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Groups’ defined benefit plan.
However, the directors are in the process of assessing the
impact of the application of the amendments and hence
have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretation will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
softwares are delivered and title has passed.

Service income relating to sales of systems products,
software licensing and customerisation is recognised when
services are rendered.

Dividend income from other available-for-sale investments
are recognised when the Group’s right to receive the
distributions has been established.
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Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

Buildings 2% — 5%

Plant and machinery and 10% — 50%

telecommunications networks
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 33'/5%
Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of
an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost
and at fair value at the acquisition date respectively. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction by the system developers. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are transferred to development
costs for systems and networks when it is implemented for
its intended use, and are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

Deposits and prepaid development costs and

development costs for systems and networks

— continued

Development costs are recognised only if all of the following

have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the asset;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred.

Development costs for systems and networks, which
are implemented for its intended use, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is
calculated based on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years.

Where the recoverable amount of development costs for
systems and networks has declined below their carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the
decline in value. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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An item of development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one
of the two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments.

46 CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

EHEE—E

R EARR

B R MR SR L I A IS E M AR
Bk A EEN R IFTESREE - RIA
BRR - BERREYER(BERKEZRE
MERFR - 758 RITEBRRIRE) NIRERE
R K 2 B AR AT 2 38R 2 BB B 1R
JIR(EHRESREEREZEHEERE T -

AL ESREE
AHHESREEREEARLIFNBRER
FEEFABRZEREE - ERRBUIRN
SR A RRRE ZIFITET R -

WEE BT SIS T (E B A T EERE
A AT E 2 ATHHEERARE - AIRREH
REERRRAREAE#R 2 REBEAE
HEREEREZEHRIL T

= db 2 Hy

EHEEZRE

EREESNREP CERFFEETLERE
PR - EEEBEBRRTEREE ZBIAK
REm - AYRHERRAEEZ —HNZHE
X EFER  SREENRRARE -

HRERKEUIRRN S  BELRERES
ECTE

o BITARRZHTHRBAMBINE
54

o ERAH - WREBMNSKEEMEEFS
FARE K

o ERARFEBRHEXMBES -

HRETEREELERN(MEKESEFIME -
ZERERMEERREZEE - 8%
SR ERME - RERRESLTRREZ
EEE RN SRR EBEUGER MEERN
FORBIEAN -



Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BlZE—ZT—=FA=THIEFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and overdrafts are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Distributions settled in shares are recorded at market price
at the date of issue and credited to the share capital and
share premium, respectively.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interest in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in that associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are provided
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entity.
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The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entity are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
Exchange difference are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposal of.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being
carried out every three years and updated annually at the
end of the reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses
which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of
the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
scheme assets at the end of the previous reporting period
are amortised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the amended benefits
become vested.
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The amount recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.
Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contribution to the scheme.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2013, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$1,132,865,000
(2012: HK$1,017,291,000).

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual useful life is less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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(1)

@

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life of the assets reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the development. Where the actual useful life
is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Estimated impairment

Determining whether development costs for systems
and networks, and deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use on a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flow expected to arise from the continuing
use of the assets or since successful launch of
technology projects and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The Group
estimates its cash flow projection covering a period
up to five years based on financial budgets approved
by management and a discount rate ranging from
10% to 20% (2012: 10% to 20%) per annum.

The directors also consider the revenue and operating
costs of the technology projects in the coming years
will be in line with the Group’s budgets, taking into
account of current economical factors. In the event
that the technology projects are not expected to be
well received by the market, these development costs
for systems and networks and deposits and prepaid
development costs may not be fully recovered and
impairment loss may arise. In the event that the
developers fail to perform their obligations to develop
the technologies as required, the Group will estimate
the future cash flows from recovering the deposits
and prepaid development costs from developers.
As at 30 June 2013, the carrying amounts of
development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs were
HK$4,335,747,000 (2012: HK$3,911,482,000) and
HK$1,099,752,000 (2012: HK$2,574,430,000)
respectively. Impairment loss has been recognised
with details set out in note 14 and note 19.

As at 30 June 2013, the aged analysis of the deposits
and prepaid development costs comprised of
balance less than one year of HK$478,920,000 (2012:
HK$471,900,000), balance between one to two years
of HK$390,000,000 (2012: HK$1,532,700,000) and
balance over two years of HK$230,832,000 (2012:
HK$569,830,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

Development costs for systems and networks and

deposits and prepaid development costs

— continued

(2)  Estimated impairment — continued
As at 30 June 2013, the deposits paid to the largest
developer and the deposits paid for the largest
project under development accounted for 36% (2012:
43%) and 44% (2012: 63%) of the total deposits and
prepaid development costs respectively.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Determining whether available-for-sale investments are
impaired requires an estimation of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of similar
assets and the assessment of the ability for repayment
by the investees. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments was HK$628,148,000 (2012:
HK$628,148,000).

Recoverability of advance to suppliers

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has advance to suppliers
of HK$1,726,275,000 (2012: HK$765,084,000). The
advance was purchase deposits paid to suppliers of system
products and cultural products.

As at 30 June 2013, the advance paid to the largest
supplier accounted for 32% (2012: 28%) of the total
advance to suppliers.

The directors of the Company consider the advance paid to
suppliers can be recovered on the assumption of realisation
of subsequent sales of related products. In the event that
the relevant products are not well received by the market
as anticipated and no subsequent sales are realised,
the advance to suppliers may not be fully recovered and
impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BiE=F—=FA=1+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5.

Categories of financial instruments

ol =
SRt T EER

2013 2012
—E-=F =
HK$'000

FHT

HK$°000
TET

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 628,148 628,148
Loans and receivables B IR R
(including deposits, bank balances and cash)  (E#EFH  RITEBRIES) 3,224,060 2,092,110
3,852,208 2,720,258
Financial liabilities TRERE
Amortised cost BRI AR 293,447 301,738

The loans and receivables as at 30 June 2012 have been
restated to include the advance to suppliers.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counter
parties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the future discounted cash
flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on
a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 93% (2012: 77%) of trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period. Also,
advances to suppliers included in other receivables are
all concentrated on a few suppliers. The management
considers that there are no significant credit risks on the
distributors and suppliers due to the long and good credit
history of these counter parties.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has approximately
HK$140,530,000 (2012: nil) of deposits maintained in
financial institutions that are not regulated in Hong Kong.
These financial institutions do not have credit rating assigned
by credit rating agencies. The management considers there
are no significant credit risks due to the long and good
credit history with these financial institutions. The credit risk
on other liquid funds is limited because the counter parties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidlity risk

In managing of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

To the extent that the interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. $@THR &
Financial risk management objectives and policies S EMRETEEERBER &
— continued
Liquidiity risk — continued RBELER &

Carrying

Effectie  On demand Total  amount at
interest  or less than 7-12 1-2 2-5 undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months years years  cash flows 2013
iy

ZEA AEB —B-=F
FHR T£12 BER RA=TH
6f8A f&Aa 120 285 a8 kAR
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TiER TER TR TER AR

2013 —%-=%

Trade and other payables ENESREMED - 44,906 - - - 44,906 44,906
Bank horrowings RITIEE 25 189,644 2,39 4507 14,354 210,900 208,708
Overdrafts i 43 39,973 - - - 39,973 39,833

214,523 2,39 4,507 14,354 205,719 293,447

Carrying

Effective  On demand Total amount at

inerest ~~ orless than Undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months cash flows

BN 7212
6f f8A 1225 2F5%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL FEL TAL 7 S
2012 —2--F
Trade and other payables ERESREER - 45,704 - - - 45,704 45,704
Bank horrowings FIEE 26 192,776 24,367 - - 217143 215,870
Overdrafts BY 43 40,306 - - - 40,306 40,164
218,786 24,367 - - 303,153 301,738
Interest rate risk Tz g
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEEEMHE@ATEERITEE B RRITHF
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings, overdrafts and RZBRERAEER - BITEEFEEBRE
bank deposits. The interest on bank loans is mainly based ABIRTRFEFEE - AKE B AL TR E
on Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate. The Group does fAIZBEAEDRIR S MFIRRER - A - EEE
not enter into any arrangement to hedge cash flow interest SRYIEEAERR - WEEZRKEBEH
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate BARFERERR

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arises.
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Interest rate risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings and overdrafts only, as management considers
interest rates on bank deposits are not subject to significant
fluctuations in interest rates. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the amount of balances outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis points) increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June
20183 would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$208,000 (2012: decrease or increase by approximately
HK$214,000) respectively.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure did not reflect the exposure during the year.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain trade
receivables and bank deposits and bank balances of the
Group and intra-group current accounts are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Group’s
policy to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign currency income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(including intra-group current accounts) at the reporting
date are as follows:

EWMITE &
BIREREEEERKE &

S —AE
AEBESBRMNETHEC BB EERERR
B(BEEEAKEARRZHRF O)RRE
Bz BREET

2013

—E-=F
Assets Liabilities Liabilities
BE afE =L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTExT TET FHT FAT
Euro BT 6,925 102 3,652 346
Hong Kong dollar BT 102,508 192 64,197 165
Pound Sterling e 1,885 - 2,918 -
Macau Pataca Pl 1,810 20 2,117 58
United States dollar ESv 463 2,562 1,434 2,548

Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Euro, Pound Sterling and United States dollar.
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
exposure on exchange rate fluctuation between Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar is considered insignificant by
the directors and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro and
Pound Sterling against each group entity’s functional
currency. 5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit before taxation where Euro and Pound
Sterling strengthens by 5% (2012: 5%) against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening
of Euro and Pound Sterling against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

Euro BT
Pound Sterling HeE

EWMITE &
BREREEEERRE &

S m i —AE

BB 4

2012
—E——F

HK$'000
TRT

3N 165
94 146

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@) Turnover
Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided
by the Group to external customers, licensing fees
and leasing income received and receivable, and
dividends received and receivable from the Group’s
strategic investments during the year.

The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

Eﬁﬁwu J_\E_ *ﬁ'jtﬂi 1{§@ﬁ§|\
EEF¢WH@1T&%¢WHM0

TRHEEREREEZAVEE

SREENESRBEZATVEERERERS
MATE AR EBEAEE -

ESRAREHR AN GAMBRETIR2S
MEENBEZRAEREAHEERS

EEBE 2 EER

(a) &XE
M%%hilﬁ$%l?ftﬁ&l\ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%
B o R IR AR 2 B UK K B IR IE
LBZ&J?%HSZZ%EH&EFH&%E%\H&)\ LA
KREARSEEREEEIRE 2B R R ER
%8 o

REEZ EXBERE ISR

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Sales of systems and products HEZFRRER 1,960,033 2,027,947
Licensing fees TS 1,325,136 1,066,338
Rendering of services IRHEARTE 91,942 66,881
Leasing of systems products HEZRER 24,806 23,222
Sales of cultural products HEXLESR 986,154 162,045
Dividend income A% 24 A 64,565 64,566
4,452,636 3,410,999

(b) Segment information (b) "EER

The operating segments have been identified on the
basis of internal management reports prepared in
accordance with accounting policies conforming to
HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company, for the purpose of
allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BlZE—ZT—=FA=THIEFE

The Group was previously organised into three
operating segments, namely “systems sales,
licensing and others”, “leasing of systems products”
and “strategic investments”. These segments were
the basis on which the Group reported its segment
information. During the year, the executive directors
of the Company reviewed separately the financial
results of sales of cultural products which were
previously reported under “systems sales, licensing
and others”, for resources allocation and performance
assessment of the Group. Accordingly, four operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are identified as follows:

e Systems sales and — includes income from sales
licensing of systems products,
software licensing and
customisation and
provision of related
services

e [easing of systems — includes income from
products leasing of systems
products

e Sales of cultural products - includes income from
trading of cultural
products

e Strategic investments — includes income from
investments

The segment revenue and result in respect of
“systems sales, licensing and others” for the year
ended 30 June 2012 have been re-presented to
conform with the current year’s segment reporting.

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the profit (loss) before taxation
earned by each segment, excluding interest income,
finance costs, share of loss of a jointly controlled
entity, unallocated income and expenses such as
central administration costs and directors’ salaries.
This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

— continued

(b) Segment information - continued (b) 7EER-#
Information regarding the above segments is reported B LMD BEERZHRAT
below:
Systems  Leasing of Sales of
sales and systems cultural Strategic
licensing products products investments  Consolidated
ZEHE HEZE  HEU REEHE
KA ER ER RE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET T TEx
Year ended §2-%-=%
30 June 2013 NAZTHILEE
TURNOVER EEE
External and total revenue HINEERBIRA 3,377,111 24,806 986,154 64,565 4,452,636
RESULTS ES
Segment result b 5,946 1,260 62,438 46,635 116,279
Interest income FI2MA 9,152
Finance costs BTHERAR (4,803)
Unallocated expenses, net ROREL—FE (20,690)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity  FE{f —F St EIRHI A E 2 I8 @
Profit before taxation BRBATER 99,934
Year ended Hz-%——%
30 June 2012 NAZTALEEE
TURNOVER BED
External and total revenue HOHMHERAPA 3,161,166 23200 162,045 64566 3410999
RESULTS ES
Segment result NEEE 79,290 1,503 (1,593 42,030 121,230
Interest income FIBA 7,358
Finance costs B A (3,436)
Unallocated expenses, net FREHY 58 (271.419)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entlty ~ fEfE— I RIESI A% 2 B (21)
Profit before taxation B AR 97,712
Year ended BE-%-=%
30 June 2013 NAZTHLEE
Amounts included in the measure of BRENERFEEE
segment profit or loss: rkox
Amortisation and depreciation BHERE 1,557,410 2,940 - - 1,560,350
Impairment losses recognised for AR RBEFABRA
development costs for systems PR 2 REEE
and networks 26,800 - - - 26,300
Impairment losses recognised for deposits 4% & RIEFIZ M A
and prepaid development costs R ABEER 157,656 - - - 157,656
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BEK
plant and equipment HEEE 48 - - - 18
—E-=EEH

03

BEMEEEERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EEERIEER &
— continued
(b) Segment information — continued (b) PEESR -2

Systems  Leasing of Sales of
sales and systems cultural Strategic
licensing products products investments  Consolidated

AEHE HERR  #HEXL

KA Em Em 3 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TARL TATL TEL TARL TR

Year ended BE-ZT-—F
30 June 2012 NAZTRLEEE
Amounts included in the measure of AR ENERFSEE
segment profit or loss: e
Amortisation and depreciation BHERITE 1,261,740 1,424 - - 1,263,164
Impairment losses recognised for deposits B4 & FB I BB AR
and prepaid development costs R ZABEER 104,174 - - - 104,174
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERR
equipment e ® - _ _ )
No assets and liabilities are included in segment HRARRHITESAAEREERERE
reporting as they are not regularly reviewed by the {EH EEAZER] - IR ABEMAR S
executive directors of the Company. WENTE ©
(c) Geographical information (c) HEER
The following table provides an analysis of the AEEHRIEREP REAEMEMEID 2
Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location WA RIFERBEESTEIIANTE

of customers and by location of assets respectively:

Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
WA FmEEE (M)
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BZEAA=THILEE RAA=1H

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —T-—F —g-—= —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FHT FTiEx FAT

People’s Republic of China iz A R £ F1E
(the “PRC"), including (TR B

Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 3,460,246 2,701,344 5,488,042 6,540,181
Europe (mainly United BUN(EZAKEE K

Kingdom and Germany) BE) 656,714 511,968 41,212 43,046
QOthers EHit 335,676 197,687 1,781 2,045

4,452,636 3,410,999 5,531,035 6,585,272

Note: Non-current assets exclude the Group’s available- Mzt : ERBDEETREAEBMZAHELE
for-sale investments and interest in a jointly controlled ’E R — RIS b3 2 s
entity.
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 7. EtWARUz

Included in other income is interest earned on bank deposits BB ABIEGERRIBITESTERI Y 7.8
and balances of HK$9,152,000 (2012: HK$7,358,000), and 9,152,000 7 (=F — =4 : 7,358,000/ 7T )
net exchange gain of HK$4,097,000 (2012: nil). M BB 5 Uk 35 R 58 54,097,000 T (=2 — =
F | o
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBHA

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts BREFRNBREEZRITEE
wholly repayable within five years RBEZZFE 4,803 3,296
Interest expense on convertible bond MR ES 2 e = 140
4,803 3,436
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KRBANER

2012
—T——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BRI AR

charging: bk -
Directors’ remuneration (Note (i) £ EACE)) 15,495 15,473
Staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration BEFRAKN(TREEEHE) 105,528 106,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions other  RRBFIFHEIE R (ZERIN)

than directors’ (Note (i) (%)) 6,849 4,119
Total staff costs EERALE 127,872 125,592

Amortisation on development costs for systems 24k RATLE R A

and networks, included in direct operating P 1

expenses GTABBREEKAN) 1,546,987 1,250,605
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, NE BEMREZINE

included in general and administrative expenses (Gt A—M& R ITEZ HA) 13,363 12,559
Total amortisation and depreciation B RITERE 1,560,350 1,263,164
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl 6,473 6,275
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BHERALHZFERA 2,294,699 1,594,972
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEY% - BE L&EE 2 EE 48 -
Minimum lease payments paid under operating  ZRBRELAECH 2 SERE

leases in respect of: [NREEE

Rented premises HEME 6,023 5,685

Motor vehicles RE 3,247 3,355
Net foreign exchange loss [E {158 = 2,421
and after crediting: REFA :
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEW% - BRE Rk 2 W - 8

—E-=FEH
aEnEAmERAD OO



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBiIADER -2
Notes: B3
(i) Information regarding directors’, chief executive’s and (i) EHES TETHAEHESME2ER
employees’ emoluments
Directors =
Year ended 30 June 2013 BE-Z—=-FXA=1tHLEE

Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
benefits payments contributions emoluments
FeR RIERHA EHRER

HER BR2RS Ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR TET

(Note)
((iE=3)
Executive directors HiTES
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok * &2
— the Company VNG - 2,400 3,700 - 6,100
— Kantone —E58 - 57 2,500 - 2,557
— Digital HK —HEEAE - 122 - - 122
- 2,579 6,200 - 8,779
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * HESSS
— the Company —A&AE - 1,320 1,600 15 2,935
— Kantone b ] 5 20 - - 25
— Digital HK —HIEE 10 18 - - 28
15 1,358 1,600 15 2,988
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BEKTE
— the Company YN - 892 600 15 1,507
— Kantone —EiB - 57 - 3 60
— Digital HK —HIEEE 10 18 = - 28
10 967 600 18 1,595
Non-executive directors HTES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight + Francis Gilbert Knightt 4+
—the Company — A 50 50 - - 100
— Digital HK —HIEEE 30 50 - - 80
80 100 - - 180
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley 5t £#
—the Company . VNG 50 50 - - 100
— Kantone -5\ 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller BELE
— the Company . VNG 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * BBt
— the Company YN 5 15 - - 20
— Kantone &\ 5 15 - - 20
— Digital HK —HHEA - 876 465 15 1,356
10 906 465 15 1,396
Mr. Lee Chi Wah TEERE
— the Company . VNG 50 50 - - 100
315 6,267 8,865 48 15,495
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBANGER -4

Notes: — continued Bt - —4F
(i) Information regarding directors’, chief executive’s and (i) EBREE xETBAEHEEMESZE
employees’ emoluments — continued B—a
Directors — continued EEF
Year ended 30 June 2012 BE-_Z——FA=THItEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
RIERER =y
29 AT IR
HK$’'000
FAT
(Note)
(PzE)
Executive directors HITES
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok * L2
— the Company . VNG - 2,400 3,700 8 6,108
— Kantone —&A - 57 2,500 2 2,659
— Digital HK —HHEE - 114 - 4 118
- 2,571 6,200 14 8,785
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * HESSS
— the Company VNG| - 1,320 1,600 12 2,932
— Kantone —AB 5 20 - - 25
— Digital HK —HIEEA 10 18 - - 28
15 1,358 1,600 12 2,985
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BANFTE
— the Company — KRR - 892 600 12 1,504
— Kantone -EA - 57 - 2 59
— Digital HK —HHEE 10 18 - - 28
10 967 600 14 1,591
Non-executive directors EHITES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight + Francis Gilbert Knight 5t 4+
—the Company — A 50 50 - - 100
— Digital HK —BHES 30 50 - - 80
80 100 - - 180
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley st £#
— the Company VNG 50 50 - - 100
— Kantone —-E8 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller HEEE
— the Company YN 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * BBt
— the Company VNG 5 15 - - 20
— Kantone -ER 5 15 - - 20
— Digital HK —BHES - 876 447 12 1,335
10 906 447 12 1,375
Mr. Lee Chi Wah TEELAE
— the Company VNG 50 50 - - 100
315 6,259 8,847 52 15,473

—T-=EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BREMEE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BE=F—=FA=1+HIEFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBIADER -2
Notes: — continued Bt : —4&
(i) Information regarding directors’, chief executive’s and (i) FHREE - T ETHAEEHEEMEZE

employees’ emoluments — continued

Directors — continued

* The director is also a director of Kantone and Digital
HK, both of which are listed subsidiaries of the

Company.
& The director is also a director of Kantone.
o The director is also a director of Digital HK.

The remuneration for non-executive directors comprises
directors’ fees and other emoluments which vary with the
number of committees on which they serve.

Note: The performance related incentive payment is
discretionary as recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to the
Group’s financial results and performance of the
directors.

Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung is the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
(2012: three) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The aggregate emoluments
of the remaining three (2012: two) highest paid employees
of the Group, not being directors of the Company, are as

B4

- ZEENREARBBER2ES -
ME ARG AARRZ EHHEAR -

t HERNREBIEE -
g FZERNMRBERTELESE -

ARTEE ML OEEENS R B
4 RIEFHAIZEEEMEMEHTR -

et : MIERRBEB I REBRBEMLE
BARBZHMEZEG2E  L2E
AEERBEEREETERAME
)

IRREEBARAITHAH - K LR
ZME Ty BIEE BTS2 FE o

ER
FEEBREBRSHFALTETRBERE(ZZ
—ZF ZR)ARAEF  ZEZMEFHE
HNEX - AEBHEB=R(ZT——F:
B)EEFHES (LHFARRES) 2HELE
mr

follows:
2013 2012
—EB-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Salaries and other benefits FHeREMEF 3,720 2,771
Performance related incentive payments BRIERBERZZE 1,284 629
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT BT 112 -
5,116 3,400

Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:

EEE ZMENF TFIEE

Number of employee(s)
EEAY

2013

—E-=

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 —2,000,000/% 7T

None of the directors had waived any emoluments in both
years.
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. PBRFHANER =
Notes: — continued Wi —4F

(i) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (ii)

2013
—BE-=F

HK$°000
TEx

Retirement benefit scheme contributions to RASE 2 FEURFEL 2

the Group’s defined contribution scheme RINEFIFT B 918 1,082
Retirement benefit scheme contributions to RASEZ TEEMFELRAZ
the Group’s defined benefit scheme RINEFIFT BB 5,979 3,089
6,897 4171
Defined contribution scheme TEE R E

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a
retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of their
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled all
eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory provident
fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit cost of
the MPF scheme charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of government-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the respective local government in
the Mainland China. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year, retirement benefit scheme contributions
paid for the above scheme amounted to HK$918,000 (2012:
HK$1,082,000).

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits related to the final salary
of the members at retirement and their length of service. The
scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary
on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit
credit method are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between
1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for each year of pensionable
service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits
are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
scheme assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out at 31 December 2011 by Ms.
Alison Bostock, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries, and
were updated to 30 June 2013 by Mr. Adam Stanley for the
accounting reporting purpose. The assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are
those relating to the rate of return on investments and the
rates of increase in salaries, pensions and share dividends.

AARBTETHBRAR AN EESE—
FURNBAFTE] - ZHRT B2 BEEAEHE
ZARESRARE  UERBBEMLZEAZS
ZEEA -

—ETRREA+ AR AEERERER
ZHBARERESEMELSEBRHIEATE
S(8ES D8 - NMEEMBR 2 BRES A
BRI BANR AR AR EIRBRED A BIRE
ZHRERIRSF EUER 2 3K -

AEFBRFPBERMKNEAGMES AP ESH
T7 BT & i 2 B B IR R KRR R ET IR B o
RNEBANIET B D2 TERARZRA
BREFEVELHZR - ARSRAREELES -
eI EER T AEER LR KBTS
M — i o

FR - g EE BT XN 2 BKE R B
FA918,000/8 7T (—Z ——4F : 1,082,000/8
JT) °

TERBIEF a1
ARRETETHBARNRL—HEETER
ZIRRIERIGTE -t 81 ThiR(E B N R IR
Z B B e ELAR 7 4 B P R R 2 SERRAR AR
B o WA EE TR K EZHE -

BIEAERBEMS = FRBTEMERE
EITHEEEZHER - DRGREBR R EA
2EKERPNR - REZAE - BEE—K
NEESHEEFAEBRAKE  BENT&
RE21.67%ZE2.50% KB FTIRHE AT &R
ReZRBFHESFFHE - AEEIWERHE
HARINEET - A2 EIEEREEE
kEBRAAREREIR -_T—&+=A
=+—HEHhAlison Bostockz £ (ff AiEE 2
SERKE)#TT © KAdam Stanley L EF
FEZZT—=—FA=+0  UE#ETET
WESH HEERRSATEZBRRDE
BIREBRERF €  RIKSER S ZFHE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BREMEE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B EZ=Z—=F~A=+HLFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBIADER -2
Notes: — continued Bt : —4&
(ii)  Retirement benefit scheme contributions — continued (ii) BRI RIS —F

Defined benefit scheme — continued
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

TR T & — 4

Discount rate 3RS

Expected return on scheme assets TEHIEH B S E R
Expected rate of salary increase HEHF TR
Future pension increases RIRBIRS IR

FTAZ TEREMRRNT
At 30 June 2013 At 30 June 2012
R=B-=
AA=TH
4.60% 4.30%
6.50% 5.60%
3.40% 2.90%
3.20% 2.90%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2013 by Mr.
Adam Stanley showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$289,929,000 (2012: HK$284,899,000) and
that the actuarial value of these assets represented 76%
(2012: 72%) of the benefits that had accrued to members. A
shortfall of HK$9,269,000 (2012: HK$20,739,000) in 2013,
which was the excess of net unrecognised actuarial losses
over the greater of 10% of the fair value of scheme assets
and 10% of the present value of funded obligations, is to
be cleared over the estimated remaining service period of
current membership of 10 years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit pension scheme are as follows:

RiEAdam Stanley e EEHE =T —=4F
NAZTHAZREGRERT  TEEEZ
1B A 289,929,000 # 7T (= T — = 4 :
284,899,000/ ) * MZEEEZBEEE
BLHEEBREBENZT6%(ZE— =45 :
72%) o T — =4 589,269,000 7T (=
T — 4 : 20,739,000/ ) Z BEE - BIR
RIBEERFHENBTEEERTEEZ
10% L EEEERBE210% (NS EAE)
2R RS EER ZEFIARRE
FHI(LA10F(EET) RIBE -

MEBEARAKGENGABERRLM2E
WasRPERZ BT

2013 2012
—B-=F =5

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FHT

Current service cost BATRB AR 2,013 2,941
Interest on obligation APEZFIE 17,064 19,055
Expected return on plan assets FEEE 7 EEE® (15,885) (18,907)
Net actuarial losses REBETE 2,787 -
5,979 3,089

The charge for the year has been included in direct operating
expenses.

The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit pension scheme is as follows:

REFHBFFABREERAK -

AEBEEREBMER B AEMELEZ
SEEAANGARMBHRE - ST

2013
—E-=

HK$°000

FHET
Fair value of scheme assets HEEEZATFEE 289,929 284,899
Present value of funded obligations BeFE7BE (383,701) (395,585)
Net unrecognised actuarial loss RERZBEEEFE 47,639 60,297
(46,133) (50,389)
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9.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9.

Notes: — continued

(i) Retirement benefit scheme contributions — continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation are as follows:

BRELBI A 4

it : —4F

) RMEA RGN
ERERI B -
ERENREZ RELBOT

'000

THET

At beginning of the year =) 395,585 354,616

Currency realignment B 5 B 9,417) (12,242)
Service cost PRASAR A 2,013 2,941
Interest cost FIEAA 17,064 19,055
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (M=) EE (10,091) 43,486
Contributions % 1,670 1,347

Benefits paid BT 4E (13,123) (13,618)
At end of the year Fik 383,701 395,585

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

RPBIEEZ AFEEZHNT

2013 2012

—B-=F 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHAT
At beginning of the year F5) 284,899 273,552
Currency realignment [ 5 A% (7,332) (8,993)
Expected return on plan assets FEEEZ EEE® 15,885 18,907
Actuarial gain BEU 1,571 1,384
Contributions % 8,029 13,667
Benefits paid FRiER (13,123) (13,618)
At end of the year Fhk 289,929 284,899

The fair value of plan assets and the expected rate of return
at the end of the reporting period is analysed as follows:

Expected rate of return

AEEENHEN AR Z ATERERES
EIERE ST -

Fair value of plan assets

FHE = STEIEEZATER
2013 2013 2012
—B-=F —B-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHAT
Equity instruments BEIA 6.50% 5.90% 255,773 251,497
Debt instruments BRI E 3.50% 2.90% 31,407 32,265
Other assets HiEE 0.50% 0.50% 2,749 1,137
289,929 284,899

—e-=55H
aEnEamaRay [ |



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 HEZE=F—=FA=1+HIEFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Notes: — continued

(i) Retirement benefit scheme contributions — continued

Defined benefit scheme — continued

The weighted average rate of return of assets held is
6.1% (2012: 5.6%). The overall expected rate of return is
a weighted average of the expected returns of the various
categories of plan assets held. The assumptions used in
determining the overall expected return of the scheme have
been set with reference to yields available on government
bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on plan assets was HK$17,456,000 (2012:
HK$20,291,000).

The history of the plan for the current and prior periods is as
follows:

2013
—B-—=

HK$’000
FTER

Present value of defined benefit TEREENAEEZ

9.

BRBE

BT -

(i)

-1y |
g

BAERG IR A

TERBIET 5T E— &

P B2 TR BER6.1%(—F——
F :5.6%) - BERHME BT BMFHTRE
Bl 2 5 &I E ETAH D 3 2 IET IR - BEE
ARz BRERRBMEAZBRREZZER
FHE 77 3R 5 A e b m R s o

FHEIEE 2 BFR R 417,456,000/ 7T (=&
——4F : 20,291,000/ 7T) °

BB AR B A I 2 iRk T

2009
—ETNE
HK$'000
FHx

obligation RE 383,701 395,585 354,616 328,404 303,635
Fair value of plan assets HEEECATER (289,929) (284,899) (273,552) (223,371) (210,234)
Deficit B4 93,772 110,686 81,064 105,033 93,401
Experience adjustments on plan FrElAaE BT

liabilities HE (10,091) 43,486 (4,510) 40,440 11,059
Experience adjustments on plan HEBEZBE

assets ks (1,571) (1,384) 20,834 16,112 (16,964)
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10. TAXATION CREDIT

10.

The credit comprises: BEEREE
Deferred taxation (note 27) R (P E27)

BRI R

2013
—2-=F

HK$'000
TET

2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FHIT

- (167)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong. No provision for taxation has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from
Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor
is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either exempt
from Macau income tax or not subject to taxation in any
other jurisdictions.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

ERFERTILUR A BB 2 TR AR
16.5%(=F——4F : 16.5%) 2 FiKE - |
RAEEZIRAREIER BRI - IEREE
7 A AREHRIE R o HhEl A @ 2
YR ER RAE S B A2 R E -

ERBEREZREASREE R EMEEE

REBRN - TFIEREEE  WHBHNES

MR - MUt EENC BRI EH
BANEM REMD RGN EMBIA -

AEFEZRBRRRGA RS R A C2E RS
RZGEHEDEFH RN

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
—EB-=£ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAEL
Profit before taxation MR B E A 99,934 97,712
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate wE }%%U’E %)%3216 5%
of 16.5% (= ~%F 1 16.5%)
(2012: 16.5%) ;Hr,ézwéi 16,489 16,122
Tax effect of profit exempted or not subject E’\E@ﬂ}iim@%%@%f%ﬂﬁ‘i
to taxation in other jurisdictions BRRMRMN RsE 2 (44,651) (15,409)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TN A= Ko b
tax purposes Y7 32,167 2,665
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAREE B BB 2 WAz
purposes Hisye (12,819) (12,925)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ikﬁEwZﬁIE JEETEZ%R?]‘%%% 9,259 9,396
Tax effect of share of loss of a jointly i —FERRERCE BB
controlled entity W‘%E@a 1 3
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) B A 2y BiEEE (562) (152)
Others =’} 116 129
Taxation credit for the year REEZBURE S - (167)
B E R i %ﬂa 73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRERE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

11. DIVIDENDS

2013 final dividend proposed in scrip form
equivalent to HKO.1 cent
(2012: HKO.1 cent) per share,

11. BRR

2013 2012
—g—-= —ET——F
HK$’000

THT

HK$’000
FTER

BABRR B NRRBEN T
01BN =B—=4F : 0.138(l)
ZE-CEERRASRS

with a cash option SRS 6,242 6,125
2013 interim dividend paid in scrip form RURREFREBS R ER
equivalent to HK0.2 cents 0.28M(=ZT—=4F : 0.3/8(l)
(2012: HKO.3 cents) per share, ZZE-=FEENTHRE
with a cash option ARERE 12,328 18,136
18,570 24,261

The proposed final dividend for 2013 is calculated on the
basis of 6,242,427,454 shares (2012: 6,125,016,308
shares) in issue on 30 June 2013.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings attributable to owners of the Company LAt &R EAEFZ
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings ZA/NSIE S PN
per share EILEF

Interest on convertible bond AR EHFE

R FERRABRETNIE S —=FX
A=1+H2B3%1Ti%(76,242,427,454% (=&
—— 4 :6,125,016,3080% )5t & -

12. SREF
A REHESRBFITIR TFIBEE -

Earnings for the purpose of calculating diluted LAt E&EEEGREFY

garnings per share gl

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FisT
62,618 62,478
140

62,618

Number of shares ('000)
RDEE (AT RREH)

2013
—E-=F

Weighted average number of shares for the

DS BB BEAR DM 2 ik

purpose of calculating basic earnings per share  F#Hi% 5 & H 6,150,407 6,036,372
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary B#Ea ) OB BT TRk

shares: 2 &

Convertible bond AARES 19,388
Weighted average number of shares for the MBS # S GIRAT

purpose of calculating diluted earnings 2 IETHERRA

per share 2R 6,055,760

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year
ended 30 June 2013 as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during the year. The convertible bond (note
26) was fully redeemed by the Company on 19 September
2011,
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BERRE

Plant and
machinery
and tele-
Landand communications  Furniture and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
BEEHE
THREF REGEZ HRREE RE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAL TAL TEL T
cosT PAE
At1July 2011 RZE—F+tA—H 59,407 995,254 16,802 8,149 1,079,612
Currency realignment EHAR (672) (10,93) - - (11,610)
Additions NE - 10,528 2 - 10,530
Disposals HE - (622) - - 622)
At 30 June 2012 RZE-—F/ A=1H 58,735 994,222 16,804 8,149 1,077,910
Currency realignment [ AR (413) (7,306) - - 7,19
Additions NE - 10,437 - - 10,437
Disposals HE - (540) - - (540)
At30 June 2013 R=B-=F~A=tA 58322 99813 16,804 8149 1,080,088
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TELRE
At1July 2011 R-E—F+A—H 29,144 960,806 16,075 7278 1,013,303
Currency realignment [ 5 3R (251) 9742 - - (9,993)
Provided for the year FREE 1,775 10,228 259 297 12,559
Eliminated on disposals HERMR - (524) - - (524)
At 30 June 2012 RZE——F A=tH 30,668 960,768 16,334 7575 1,015,345
Currency realignment EHAZ (140) (6,740) - - (6,880)
Provided for the year FREHE 1,651 11,192 223 297 13,363
Eliminated on disposals I EFER - (481) - - 481)
At 30 June 2013 R-EB-=FXA=1H 32,179 964,739 16,557 7872 1,021,347
CARRYING VALUES EmE
At 30 June 2013 R-E-=FXA=1H 26,143 32,074 247 217 58,741
At 30 June 2012 R-Z——Fx A=tH 28,067 33,454 470 574 62,565

—R-=FFRHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B EZ=Z—=F~A=+HLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

13. W% - BERSRE =

2013 2012
—E-=F =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT Fit

The carrying values of the Group’s property K& [E 2 Y& Rz EEEE

interests comprise: BIE

Freehold properties held outside

REBIAIMBE R AR A K

Hong Kong paES 12,939 13,586
Leasshold properties: HEWE :
Held in Hong Kong REBRE
— long leases —REZH 8,909 9,786
— medium term leases — IR 2,062 2,207
Held outside Hong Kong REBAIMEREFE
— long leases (Note) — RERZL (FI5E) 140 183
— medium term leases (Note) — R (H5E) 2,093 2,305
26,143 28,067

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

At 30 June 2013, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$7,871,000 (2012:
HK$8,128,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group leased equipment to customers on operating
leases terms. The carrying value of such equipment,
which was included in plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks, was as follows:

Mk - AR RBFRO TR EME S - B
ANERZBET B AYE - BB RRE -

RIZE—=FXA=+8 A£ERAER
7,871,000 7TC(=F— =4 : 8,128,000 7T)
ZETLHREFEERTRT - (EREAEE
ERRITRIE Z 2R -

REBBRGEREFAHERETEF - 58
BEZRABEEABEEKER EEPR
ARSI

2013

—E—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz TBT

Customer equipment at cost RERE - B AE 75,236 77,109
Less: Accumulated depreciation W BATE (74,339) (76,084)
Carrying value BREE 897 1,025
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14. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS AND  14. 2GR A& KA
NETWORKS
2013
—E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEx FHIT
CosT BKAE
At beginning of the year F14) 10,893,744 8,935,278
Currency realignment i i 439 (22
Addition NE - 470,794
Transferred from deposits and BERe R
prepaid development costs TERFER A 1,997,697 1,487,694
At end of the year FiE 12,891,880 10,893,744
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BELRE
At beginning of the year F1) 6,982,262 5,731,657
Currency realignment [E 5 2% 84 -
Provided for the year FREE 1,546,987 1,250,605
Impairment losses recognised BERERRERE 26,800 -
At end of the year Fi 8,556,133 6,982,262
CARRYING VALUE BRME
At end of the year FiE 4,335,747 3,911,482

Development costs for systems and networks include all
direct costs incurred in the setting up and development of
systems and networks and are amortised over the estimated
economic useful lives of a maximum of five years.

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s development costs for systems and networks
in light of the current market condition. The value in use
was determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at a rate ranging 10% to 20% (2012: 10%) per
annum. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$26,800,000
(2012: nil) have been recognised after management’s
assessment on individual systems and networks.

R R AR ERABRER I ERAE RS RA
MR BEEKAR - ZERPEG AR RS
H(&RZRF) TIARS -

FAEEEERENMAHARE 2R
RS FAERAETEN - EREETRE
EEARBRERBFEENF10%E20%(—F
— T 0% BRIRREE o Bt BIEEY
BRI F &t R AR E TR R ERREERR

26,800,000 C(ZF—=4F : ) -
-z _¢¢ﬁ
HBERMEEEERAR 77



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BiE=F—=FA=1+HILFE

15.

/8

GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the following cash generating unit (“CGU”):

Provision of e-lottery services
(included in the systems sales and licensing segment)

REEFERRS
(FIARBIRERSFED )

15. &

EBAGTE 2 mE N KER DR E T
IR ([FINEN]) ¢

2013 & 2012

HK$’000
FTET

36,795

For each of the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of its CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets and projected for the
next three (2012: three) years based on remaining life of
respective license, taken into account renewed license
period, and discounted at a rate of 20% (2012: 20%)
per annum which reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. Since the recoverable amount of CGU exceeded
the carrying amount, no impairment loss was considered
necessary.

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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BEE AEEEEERTE  HEsREzE
BRI EHE -

BIREN 2 A ESEAFEREEFNE A
EE - FHREENEEZZETZERESRERZ
ARIRE MRERPUREBREZKAZ EEE
&) o EIREFA N RMEATTISTEZIRE
RHE I B30 BB A7 2 B Bk 2 B AT I R T BA 3R
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FR - ARERRE ERERIMYHEEL
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

16. AItHERE

2013

—E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEx TAT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEETRARES - IR ANE 635,248 635,248
Impairment loss recognised BEHRRAERE (7,100) (7,100)
628,148 628,148

The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private
entities incorporated outside Hong Kong holding
strategic investments in information technology and
telecommunications industry. They are measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the management is of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted shares, at cost
Impairment loss recognised

EHERZAERRA

JE LD - RRAE

FELEMBRAR BN E B LAIMNE @R EMAKL
TREMBREEEFERBIEREZALA
BREMBITZFELMBRARSZRE - ZFR
BN E B AR R AMER E R REHREE
S5t 8 WIHARABATEEAEEEE
R ERERRAREER SFEHFFEBEAFEE -

17. R—EBE QR &R

2013
—E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FE7 FET

31 31
(31) (31)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate at 30 June
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

RZBE—=FEx-_F——-FA=1+H K&
EEEHBERRZFBOT

Proportion of nominal value of

Place of issued capital held
Name of company incorporation by the Group Principal activities
NREER AR L 1t B AEERECRITRAEEZLH TEEK
2013 2012
—E-=
Belcher Technology Limited Samoa 28% 28% Inactive
BETHS TE R

—e-=£5H
aEnEamanan [



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B EZ=Z—=F~A=+HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. A—EREEHIbHE 2 EH
ENTITY
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT
Cost of unlisted investments in R—EERER LT
a jointly controlled entity AR 500 500
Share of post-acquisition loss FEME UL 2 E51B (25) @1
475 479
Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at 30 June RIEBE—=FR_T——FNA=1THAXEH
2013 and 2012 are as follows: ZHREEHIDE BT
Principal Proportion of nominal value of
Place of place of Class of issued capital held
Name of company incorporation operation shares held by the Group Principal activity
iR AEERED
NGRS AEER S B AR i 2 LienEbill BATRAEE 2L TEEK
2013 2012
=B —Z2--fF
Hungary Hongkong Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50%  Provision of promoting,
Innovation Investment developing and
Limited marketing services for
innovative products
and solutions
AAMEBEIFRE FE e TR REIBERRAR
BRAE RUERE  FER
T35 8 & RS
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REEN— B RS 2 i 2 AR
interest in a jointly controlled entity, which is prepared THiREAARE BT A LT BUE — B @5 BE
using accounting policies in conformity with the accounting WEL . WIARERDRARR - HEEEHIWT :

policies adopted by the Group and accounted for using the
equity method, is set out below:

2013 2012
—B—_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FEx
Total assets BERE 484 484
Total liabilities &R 9) ©)
475 479
Revenue WA = -
Loss for the year FREE 4 (1)
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19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAID DEVELOPMENT

COSTS

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s deposits and prepaid development costs in
light of the delayed commencement of certain technology
projects and determined that certain deposits and prepaid
development costs were impaired based on the estimated
recoverable amounts with reference to their values in use.
The value in use was determined based on the estimated
future cash flows discounted at a rate of 20% (2012:
10% to 20%) per annum. Based on the value in use
estimation, management has determined an impairment
loss of HK$157,656,000 (2012: HK$104,174,000) to be
recognised during the year.

20. INVENTORIES

19. RERFANFEBHRAR

FR - EEEAEETRBIEEEERE MY
AEEZ RS RBMAEKRAETER I
B2EHEFERBEMG 2T KRESE - R
EhE TS REMARKRAELRE - F
FREE DIRIETE AR RIS IR FF E20%

T 0% E20%)BEMEE © 1B
BEREECHE  EEEZEFTAMERZ
S E &5 18 A 157,656,0008 L ( — T — —F :

104,174,000/87T) °

20. &

2013 2012

—E2-=F —T——F

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FTET FAT

Raw materials B 11,957 12,907
Work in progress RS 4,909 2,443
Finished goods BURK G 7,670 5,271
24,536 20,621

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. BWE S K EARK

2013
—BE-=F
HK$’000
FTET

HK$'000
FET

Trade receivables FEW B S BRI 1,132,865 1,017,291
Advances to suppliers B RIE 1,726,275 765,084
Other receivables M EL A BR 3K 35,241 30,503
2,894,381 1,812,878

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding AEEREESEFPETHBZEERR - B

its trade customers depending on their credit worthiness,
nature of services and products, industry practice and
condition of the market with credit period ranging from
30 days to 180 days. The advances to suppliers and
other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
refundable, and are expected to be realised in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

BREZER  REEEMZMED - TARE
EiisERmaE TERENFI0HEI80H Z1E
BH o TR R ARIR R R L A AR AR SR AR
- DEERARE - WIRA NS HEAER
TEARRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRERE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

21.

82

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued
The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

21. BWE S REMRR =

FEWE ZRANIRERTAERBIEERASZ

BRECOT25I0AT

2013 2012

2= —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FRRE FRL

0 - 60 days 0-60H 675,762 514,204
61 — 90 days 61-90H 304,595 331,875
91 — 180 days 91-180H 152,508 171,195
> 180 days > 180H = 17
1,132,865 1,017,291

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define the credit limit for the
customers. Limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history. The
Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of good credit quality as continuous repayment have
been received.

The trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

Hong Kong dollar BT

REMEFFHELA - AREZHMBRHEEER
BEEEHHEERPLERER  URER
FZEER BTEPZEERSE2TRER
HEoiE METEN - REPKERENAR
AEBZ BB RHEERBFRRRABRARR

WREZ REE D EFEBRIFEEEER -

BRI B B RETh AL B LA 2 EHFHE 2 JE

WE 5 K AR ESINT

2013

HK$°000
TET

63,454

2012
—T——F
HK$’'000
FHEL

57,355
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22. DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND

22. X BITEBRRRE EX

CASH/OVERDRAFTS
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deposits with financial institutions K& R 2 750 140,530 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRLIAS 190,274 280,101
330,804 280,101

The Group’s deposits, bank balances and cash that
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

REE AR EEERINEER AN 2 B 5
B2ER - RITEHRIIRSHINMT

Hong Kong dollar BT
Euro BT
Macau Patacas SRPIEE
Others Hith

2013 2012
—Z-=F% —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fiax FHT
39,054 6,842
6,824 2,627
1,751 2,117

505 3,641

The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
cash held by the Group. The deposits carried interest at an
average rate of 0.02% (2012: 0.02%) per annum.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$17,991,000 (2012:
HK$7,643,000) were denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is not freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the Government of the PRC.

Overdrafts

The overdrafts which are repayable on demand, carried
variable interest at average rate of 4.3% (2012: 4.3%) per
annum. Also, included in overdrafts was an amount of
HK$306,000 (2012: HK$537,000), representing overdrafts
from financial institutions.

R RITERERSBEINHAR=EA
TR ZEMERRAREREZRE - 7
FIRFHFEMNEK002E(ZF——F : 0.02E)
FHE

#817,991,000 (= ZF— =4 : 7,643,000
B ZETRITEHBEASTINARETA
REDFHE - MARBILIFARERTSE H
Hpz B o AREBEZRTERNEE @ #
TRENZEE SRR P EBNEEINEE
PR

EX
BIRBAEE BT REBF R FH4.3
B(—ZT——4% : 43F)t 8 o o BN
BIER A © R E 28 806,000 T (= F
——4 : 537,000/87T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 30 June 2013, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$12,192,000 (2012:
HK$11,855,000). The aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

23. ERESREMBER
RZZE—=FA=1AH EHNESIKEME
R AR BIE12,192,0008 T(ZF— =4
11,855,000 ) Z RN E SRR - BHE S
AR A 25 BT AE IS AR R B 22 B B 2 BRER D AT
25T -

2013 2012

2= —T—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

0 - 60 days 0-60H 11,907 9,461
61 — 90 days 61-90H 4l 90
91 —180 days 91-180H 4 2,182
> 180 days > 180H 210 122
12,192 11,855

The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30

days to 60 days.

Other payables mainly represent receipts in advance and

accruals.

24. WARRANTY PROVISION

BEERZEEHNFI0HE60A -

N EMRRER AR FIARIRRER -

24, REERE

2013 2012

—Eg-= —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHEx FAT

At 1 July RtA—8 1,229 1,445
Currency realignment BEE i 3% 37 (174)
Provided during the year FREE 1,083 1,136
Utilised during the year FREEHH (1,103) (1,178)
At 30 June WANA=Z1H 1,246 1,229

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior
experience and industry average for defective products.
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25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITEE

26.

2013
—E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
The bank loans are repayable as follows: BEEBZIRTERWT
On demand or within one year RRMs—ENER 191,719 215,870
More than one year but less than two years LZR—FEIRBE 4,247 -
More than two years but less than five years SHRMEERIREF 12,742 -
208,708 215,870
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : JRENEEE MR —FRFE 2
current liabilities x| (191,719) (215,870)
Amount due after one year R—FRIBz &% 16,989 -
The bank loans bear variable interest ranging from 2.2% to RITEFIRN F22EEI0E(ZE—ZF ¢
3.0% (2012: 1.3% to 3.2%) per annum. 1.3EE3.2[E ) 2 FBFFEEE ©
Bank loans of HK$21,708,000 (2012: HK$25,870,000) $R1TE 721,708,000/ T ( =T — — 4 :
were secured by the Group’s land and buildings with 25870000 L) NEASEREE A
carrying value of HK$7,871,000 (2012: HK$8,128,000). 7,871,000/ 7L ( —Z——4 : 8,128,000/ T)
2 T AR VR AR o
CONVERTIBLE BOND 26. AARES
HK$’'000
FHEL
As at 1 July 2011 RZE—FtH—H 64,341
Redeemed during the year FRERD (64,341)
As at 30 June 2012 and RIB——FXA=1THEK
30 June 2013 —E—=FXA=1+H -

—E-=FEH
AENEABERAD OO



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RS MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BlZE—ZT—=F~A=THIEFE

On 19 September 2008, the Company issued a convertible
redeemable bond (the “Convertible Bond”) in the principal
amount of HK$188,553,000 pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement dated 13 August 2008 between the
Company and Lawnside, a substantial shareholder of the
Company (the “Bondholder”). The principal terms of the
Convertible Bond were as follows:

(@)

The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bond might be converted at the option of the
Bondholder in whole or in part into shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at any time from the date of
issue of the Convertible Bond (the “Issue Date”) up to
the second anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity
Date”), or the third anniversary of the Issue Date if the
Company should have given written notice for such
extension of time to the Bondholder ten days prior to
the second anniversary of the Issue Date, at a price
equal to the higher of the initial conversion price of
HK$0.70 (after adjustment on 7 January 2011 as a
result of the rights issue of the Company) (the “Initial
Conversion Price”), subject to adjustment; and the
average of the volume-weighted average prices of the
Company’s shares for the ten dealing days ending on
the day immediately preceding the date of a relevant
conversion notice delivered by the Bondholder to the
Company multiplied by a factor of 0.8.

The Convertible Bond bore interest at the rate of 1%
per annum and interest would be payable biannually
in arrears in March and September in each year.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Convertible Bond would be
redeemed at 100% of the principal amount at
maturity plus any interest accrued thereon.

The Company should be entitled to require
redemption of the Convertible Bond or any part
thereof at any time commencing from the first
anniversary of the Issue Date at a price equal to such
principal amount of the Convertible Bond redeemed
plus any interest accrued thereon.

The Bondholder should be entitled to require
redemption of the Convertible Bond or any part
thereof at any time commencing after the Issue Date
in the event that the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s share on the Exchange for each
of the 15 consecutive dealing days falling within the
period of 30 days immediately prior to the date of
such notice of redemption is less than 50% of the
Initial Conversion Price.
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND - continued

27.

® The Maturity Date might be extended to 19
September 2011 at the option of the Company,
by giving written notice for such extension to the
Bondholder ten days prior to the Maturity Date.

As the conversion price was not fixed, the conversion option
of the Convertible Bond would not result in settlement by
the exchange of a fixed amount for fixed number of equity
instruments. Therefore, the conversion option was regarded
as a derivative.

The Convertible Bond included the liability component and
embedded derivatives (including the conversion option and
early redemption and extension options).

The Convertible Bond bore interest at 1% per annum
payable semi-annually. The outstanding principal sum of the
Convertible Bond as at 30 June 2011 was fully redeemed
by the Company on 19 September 2011.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised and
movement thereon:

26.

27.

RRES =

0  AATIRERIEANTAMEES
BABLEEMALN  BHMAMEE=
2——&hA+NA -

MR REINIEEE - R A A 72 S
B EBUZEE MR E TSR 2 #am T
Ao At - BERRAITETA -

ARRESEFEEESI RASITETAR
EHBRE IR RO TR ) -

ARBES TR FNEI B SN EEF D H
XY e RZBE——FXNA=THEARBR AR
REFZASLBEEN—T——FNAATNE
BEARRRIZEED -

EEBLIR
ERREEER ERARSBRIIMT

Accelerated tax depreciation
DEBIIEE
2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
TET

HK$'000
TET

Balance at beginning of the year FNHEH - 169
Currency realignment B 5 3% = @
Credited to profit or loss sABR = (167)
Balance at end of the year FRER - -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused RI|EHTER  ANEBAREHZHEA
tax losses of approximately HK$568,630,000 (2012: &5 18 #7 568,630,000 5t ( — T — — 4F :

HK$515,917,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

515,917,000 7T) + AIAERE A& 2 mF o
A AREETERT B8 2 iE FITRR » B0 45 FERR IR
ERMEEE - WS IEE B &R AR
ﬁ;ﬁ} °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 HE=F—=FA=1+HIEFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRA
Number of shares Amount
R EE k-]
‘000 HK$’000
VAT RR&ET FHT
Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each: GREBEIBITEERA
Balance at 1 July 2011, W_E—&+tHF—H-
30 June 2012 and —E——FXRA=tHRK
30 June 2013 “E-=FRA=tHzEH 30,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of BREEABITZEETR
HK$0.1 each: R
Balance at 1 July 2011 I = bl = 6,014,110 601,411
Issue of shares as 2011 final Lxﬁxﬁ BEIRMIEA-Z——F
scrip dividend REARE B 31,349 3,135
Issue of shares as 2012 interim IR EBITRIEA=S—=F
scrip dividend T HIRR B 79,557 7,956
Balance at 30 June 2012 and RZZE——FX A=+AK
1 July 2012 —E-ZFEA-HAZER 6,125,016 612,502
Issue of shares as 2012 final R EEITROIER-S—=4F
scrip dividend REBRZ B 39,059 3,906
Issue of shares as 2013 interim RREBITROIERA=S—=
scrip dividend FRHR B 78,352 7,835
Balance at 30 June 2013 R-ZB-=ZEXA=+HZEH 6,242,427 624,243

During the year, the following changes in the share capital FER - AATRRARZ BEEH R T :

of the Company took place:

(@) in February 2013, 39,058,800 shares of HK$0.1 each @ NZBE—=F_A REEER_-Z
were issued at a price of HK$0.105 per share upon —=F—A+—B%YL BRI
election by shareholders to receive shares in the AR BEE - MARRRNDAREERS
Company in lieu of the 2012 final dividend in cash, WE = F— —FREARR B2 - KA TR
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in FR%0.1057 T 2 {8 1& 17 39,058,800
a circular dated 11 January 2013; and FIREEC.A1B TG + &

(o) in May 20183, 78,352,346 shares of HK$0.1 each b)) R-E—Z=FHF BWEREEZR_-Z
were issued at a price of HK$0.105 per share upon —=FEA+NBEY ZBEFAER
election by shareholders to receive shares in the PARRR BEETE] » UAATRHRERS
Company in lieu of the 2013 interim dividend in cash, W —FE—=Fh g 8% - AATFIR
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in FRX0.1057 7T 2 (B 18 3£ 1778,352,346
a circular dated 16 April 2013. I EEO. BT Z Ik -

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing FAEENEMETZBROES T EREERREEE

shares in issue in all respects. BTN Z A RIS -
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Each of the Company, Kantone, a 54.89% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Digital HK, a 74.48%
owned subsidiary of the Company, has a share option
scheme under which eligible persons, including directors of
the Company, Kantone, Digital HK or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company, Kantone and Digital HK
respectively.

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme. The scheme expired on 28
November 2012 and the Company adopted a new
share option scheme on 30 November 2012 (the
“Champion Option Scheme”) on terms similar to the
former share option scheme. The purpose of the
Champion Option Scheme is to attract and to retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Champion
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business and
operation of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates
or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Group, to subscribe
for shares of the Company. An option granted by
the Company is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which should not be more
than ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Champion Option Scheme is equal to the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; and (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Champion Option Scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the Champion
Option Scheme. The total maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one grantee in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. No option has been
granted by the Company under the former share
option scheme and the Champion Option Scheme
since their adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RS MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 BlZE—ZT—=F~A=THIEFE

On 29 November 2002, Kantone adopted a share
option scheme. The scheme was expired on 28
November 2012 and Kantone adopted a new share
option scheme on 30 November 2012 (the “Kantone
Option Scheme”) on terms similar to its former share
option scheme. The purpose of the Kantone Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel
and other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of the
Kantone Group. Under the Kantone Option Scheme,
the directors of Kantone may grant options to any
eligible persons of the Kantone Group, including
directors, employees, consultants, advisors in respect
of business and operation of Kantone, its subsidiaries
or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include the aforesaid persons
or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid
persons as well as customers and suppliers of the
Kantone Group, to subscribe for shares in Kantone.
An option granted by Kantone is exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors which
should not be more than ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Kantone Option Scheme is equal to the highest of (j)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Kantone Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Kantone at
the date of approval of the Kantone Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
Kantone from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from Kantone’s shareholders. No
share option has been granted by Kantone under its
former share option scheme and the Kantone Option
Scheme since their adoption.
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On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a
share option scheme. The scheme expired on 28
November 2012 and Digital HK adopted a new share
option scheme on 30 November 2012 (the “DHK
Option Scheme”) on terms similar to its former share
option scheme. The purpose of the DHK Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel
and other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of Digital
HK and its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”).
Under the DHK Option Scheme, the director of Digital
HK may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business and
operation of Digital HK, its subsidiaries or affiliates
or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as any person or entity as may be determined by the
directors of Digital HK from time to time of the Digital
HK Group, to subscribe for shares of Digital HK. An
option granted by Digital HK is exercisable at any
time for a period of should not more than ten years
from the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted is equal
to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(ii) the closing price per share as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Digital HK
at the date of approval of the DHK Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
Digital HK from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of Digital HK in issue on
the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Digital HK’s shareholders. No option
has been granted by Digital HK under its former share
option scheme and the DHK Option Scheme since
their adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 HE=F—=FA=1+HIEFE

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 30.
During the year ended 30 June 2012, capital contributions
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary in form of
systems and networks amounted to HK$12,232,000 (2013:
nil).

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32.

BEXFBRERS
BE_ZT——FA=1THILFE - FEREK
RARBRGRAEERA—RHHBARNEE
REEA12,282,0008 (=T —=4F : &) -

EXERER

REFETRHEER  UERAEEANESEEH
BEANFEEETAEE  ARTEBRERR
RERAZHEFERFNEFRES DR
AR BRI P E B

AEE T ARG EBTERRARTREA
FEASRESER - B RESBITRA « HRE
REHF «

ARREREGLFEMELREE - EREHNZ
—#0  ERGETREAREREBRAERIZ
HERER - REBEEESR - ARERBEBET
My mBROERBETHEXELRES
& AFEEREANG

BARESE

2013 2012
—E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FE7 FiET

Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant Y% - BEKLRELERS

and equipment and development costs for NMABEmERA A
systems and networks BERRE
— authorised but not contracted for — ABRREERETH

183,176 190,976
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

33.

2013

—E—=

Land and

buildings
TREF
HK$’000
TET

Operating leases which RTYEHERZ

REHERE

AEEEREEA

RIS BReases - AEESIEAWRRYER
AE ARG RTE Y B R RIEEN RS
HEZ BRI

2012
—E——F
Land and
buildings
TH RIETF
HK$'000
FHTL

Motor
vehicles
b
HK$’'000
FHT

Motor
vehicles
HE
HK$°000
FHT

expire: RERE -
Within one year —FR 3,839 2,385 5,152 2,220
In the second to fourth year FFEFENEF
inclusive A 5,807 4,035 2,725 2,823
9,646 6,420 7,877 5,043
Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years and REMBZHAEFEFHAN T —EE2NE - MES

rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted
with lessees in respect of leasing of premises and certain
equipment which is included in plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks, which fall due as follows:

TR—FENF 2 FHEE -

FEBERHAA

REBERTEE  ARERERYMERETE
ARG B 2s R B EMR 2 B R F AT AL
B4 EEHBERAT

2013
—T-—=F

2012
—E——F
HK$’'000
FAT

HK$°000
FER

Within one year —&FR 819 1,276
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERFR 13,608 15,840
14,427 17,116

—E-=F5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 HE=F—=FA=1+HIEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEALRS
During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group paid BE-_Z——FA=1HILFERN  x&EH
interest expenses on Convertible Bond of HK$140,000 MlLawnside(A QA EZERE KRN A ESE
(2013: nil) to Lawnside, which is a substantial shareholder Tl 2 B8 ) 5 A AR (&5 55 F1) 8. 140,000/ 7T
of the Company and an entity controlled by a director of the —E—ZF )
Company.
The transaction was pursuant to the terms of the Convertible RGBT A SRS 26TIR 2 AT
Bond as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial BRAEH ZIETETT ©
statements.
The key management personnel are the executive directors FEEBABRANRRTEERAEER T
of the Company and the five highest paid individuals. The AT o IR FREZ FFEE M o
details of remuneration paid to them are set out in note 9.
35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 35. KRRz EER
COMPANY
2013 2012
—E-=F —=——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 173 332
Available-for-sale investments AJEHERE 628,148 628,148
Interests in subsidiaries GNP 3,949,561 3,926,149
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EAERR 30,234 30,289
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIES 35,395 1,300
Total assets BEBE 4,643,511 4,586,218
Other payables FETE A BEFR 17,187 16,913
Total liabilities aiEBE 17,187 16,913
Net assets BEFE 4,626,324 4,569,305
Capital and reserves IR I e
Share capital (&N 624,243 612,502
Reserves (Note) i (P sE) 4,002,081 3,956,803
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRFEA AELER 4,626,324 4,569,305
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35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 35. KRRz EER =
COMPANY - continued

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current Fist : AAFRANEERBAFE BEEHOT
and the prior years are as follows:

Capital
Share  Dividend redemption General Capital  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Bx
BHEE KRERE HOREE -REE EARE  REER A%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TAT FHT FHET TET T FET

At1 July 2011 RZF—FtA—H 2,091,866 6,014 50 1,366,003 107,947 350,664 3,922,544

Profit and total comprehensive AR A &

income for the year EEL et - - - - - 58,409 58,409
Dividends for the year AEERE
— interim — - 18,136 - - - (18,136) -
—final —KH - 6,125 - - - (6,125) -
Dividends paid RS - (13,059 - - - — (13,059)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend AR 8. 21T - (11,091) - - - - (11,091)
- 111 - - 4261 (24,150
At 30 June 2012 RZT—=—FX A=+H 2,091,866 6,125 50 1,366,003 107,947 384,812 3,956,803

Profit and total comprehensive — Z4F &35 1| 2

income for the year ZENELEE - - - - - 63,144 63,144
Dividends for the year REERE
—interim —hH - 12,328 - - - (12,328) -
— final —5kH - 6,42 - - - (6,242) -
Dividends paid BRE - (6,125) - - - - (6,125)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend I LARE % 5. 217D 587 (12,328) - - - - (11,741)
587 17 - - - (18,570) (17,866)
At 30 June 2013 RZB-ZFEXA=+H 2092453 6,242 50 1,366,003 107,947 429,386 4,002,081

—e-=£5H
aEnEASERAD IO



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREMEE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEME AT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June RZB—=FK-_F——FA=1+0 ' &1
2013 and 2012 are as follows: ASEEMBARLZFFIBNT ¢
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMEL/ ERTRAEE/ RAREEERT
WEARZR ey Rali-e RAEELH TEER
2013 2012 013 012
Bk - ZE-CE Z5-C
100BESTSHOP.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordlinary HKS2 100% 100% - Provision of e-shopping and internet-based
Bk thRoET  LERoET actites
RUESTENRELBRE
Aspire Management Limited Bittish Virgin slands Ordinary Ordinary 42.4% 40.0%  Investment holding
ARERRHE 552,636,320 US§2,200,000 RERK
EER LR
263630%T 22000005
Big World Interational Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEDHES 5850,000 /5830,000 RERR
LER LR
50,000% 7 50,000%7C
Bingo Profits Limited Bittish Virgin slands Ordinary US$ Ordinary US$1 54.9% 55.0%  Investment holding
AReRRES LERIER LEREn RERR
Briar Intemational Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Software Cevelopment
EEDES 15$50,000 15850,000 LR
EER Lk
50,000%7T 50,0007
Champion (Cook Islands) Limited" Cooklslands Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERkE LERIERL LEkET RERR
Champion Consortium Limited Brtish Virgin Islands/ Ordinary USS1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Strategic investment
PRC EBRIET LEREL REMRE
LB4ERES/
e
Champion Intemational Brtish Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Strategic investments in
Investments Limited PRC 1S850,000 15850,000 advanced technology and e-commerce
RBUMRHE/ Lk LEk projects
ket 50,0007 50,0007 RERRRETEEERL
REIERE
Champion Luck International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordlinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
REEARERLA Bk thRoET  SERoER nERE
Champion Milion Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BEEZARAA ] LRl gk hxkE
Champion Pacfic Ivestment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordlinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
BREBRAA Bk thRoET  LSERoER nERE
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. TEMBAT-#

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
L/ ERARAEE/ EAREEERS
KEARZR Beh Rali-e RAEERLH TEER
2013 012 013 012
-§-= “3-_F -5-= —F—f
Champion Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Sales of general systems products
BENRERLA Bk HK$1,000 Hk$1,000 and provision of seniogs and softwere
Deferred Deferred licgnsing
HKS1,000,000  HKS$,000,000 HE-REGERRER
AR LR T Rt e
100047 100057
BER ERER
10000007 1,000,000
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Internet busingss
RERERRAA i LERoET  LTERoET BRAER
Chigf Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Property investment
T2ERAA Bk HK$1,000 Hk$1,000 nERE
Deferred Deferred
HK$10,000 Hk$10,000
TR LR

10007 100087
iid) ETR
10000%7 10000%7

China Sports Network Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0%  Development of gaming Software,
PRERERLT BETEE US$1,000000  US$1,000,000 sports contents, spors websies
EER LR and sports network systems
100000£7%  1,000000£T BEEE  EREH  BEEN
RERREZAREER
Chinese Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% - Paging operations
B ERERAT &k HK$1,000 HkS1,000 Bz
Deferred Deferred
HK$2,000,000 HKS$2,000,000
LBk LR
100087 10007
BTk iR
2000000B% 2,000,000
(Chinese Science & Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Internet business
BRRERAA ] LA SEkoEn EEiE0
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US§1 100% 100%  Internet business and strategic investment
EETEE LERET  SERER ERBERRRRIRE
DIGITALHONGKONG. COM NC. British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Ordinary USS1 10.1% 70.7% - Provision of an e-commerce platform
HBUMRRS LERIEr  fEREn for payment process for global business

RRRABRIETHENNERTA

e
senzamansn I/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. TEMBEATE-#
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HEL/ ERTRAEE/ AOREEERS
WEARZR gt s Rali-e RAEELH TEER
2013 012 013
8= —2-F
DIGITALHONGHKONG. CON™ Cayman slands Ordinary Ordinary 10.7% 70.7% - Ivestment holding
YBEE HeHs HK$15,000000  HKS15,000,000 RERR
LER Ll
1500000087 1500000077
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 10.7% 70.7% - Provision of an e-commerce platiorm and
R LERoEr  SERoER evaluation of e-commercg opportunites
REETHETARMET
BEE
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 10.7% 70.7%  Provision of an e-commerce platiom
YBEREARERLT B LEmAn  SRkoEn for payment process for etai customers
and e-mall basd in
Hong Kong
BEERPRIERA R
EFEAREETHRAR
BFTa
Eagle Landmark Limited Brtish Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Provision of reasury services
ARERRHE LERIZR L% REHTRE
ESP International Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment agency
ESPEIR RS EERAR &k EBRET LEko#R BERAERBAA
(Good Holdings Limited Republic of Seychelles Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0%  Ivestment holding
EERANE 15$50,000 15850,000 RERR
LER Lk
50,0057 50,0007
Happy Commercial Company Limited Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of documentation
EXERAR il MOP25,000 MOP25,000 Senvices and amangement and business
EER TER consulant
AFEB00E  RFIE500E RETHRERBERER
e
Happy Union Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERARAA 3 LERAn  SRkoEn E3IE
Harilela Kantone Telecommunications Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 55.0%  Investment in telecommunications networks
5 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 REATREL
ERR il
10,0007 10,0007
High Win Limited Brtish Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Investment holcing and strategic investment
ARERRES LERzn  SEkEn REBREFRMRE
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiaries

HEARAR

Honest (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
ERRMPEREXRE)ERAA

Hong Kong IT Alliance Limited
BREANEREERAR

Hydro-Cable Limited

Interet Vehicles Limited
EREREERLA

Kannet Limited
ERERBRAT

Kantel Limited
ERENZHEARAT

Kantone Holdings Limited™
EREEERLA

Kantone Paging Company Limited
ERPETERLA

Kantong (UK) Limited

Keen Pecifc Limtted

Kontone Development Limited
BEERERLA

Place of incorporation/

operations
L/
B

Macau
1

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin slands
ERRRRHR
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B4

Hong Kong

B

Caymanslands
FEHE

Hong Kong
EE

Untted Kingdom
EH

Samoa
BEGES

Hong Kong
EE

36. FEMBEAT &

Nominal valug of
issued share capital/
registered capital
ERTRAEE/
Rali-e

2013 012
5= —Z—F
Ordinary Ordinary
MOP100,000 MOP100,000
LR LR
BFIBI000E  FI00000E
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HK$?
LEREn  SEkoEn
Ordinary US$1~ Ordinary USS1
BERET LRl
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HK$?
LEREn  SEkoEn
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HKS2
LEktn  SEkeEn
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HK$?
LEREn  SEkoEn
Ordinary Ordinary
HKST51,602953  HK$750 467,59
LER i
TSLO0NBIET 750457565
Ordinary Ordinary
HKS$1,000 HKS1,000
Deferred Deferred
HKS2,000,000  HK$2,000000
LBk LR
10007 10007
BER Btk
20000007 2,000,000%7
Ordinary Ordinary
£5,500,000 £5,500,000
LBk LR
55000008 550000055
Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US§1
BERZT LRl
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HKS2
LEREn  SEkoEn

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital

held by the Company

EDREEERS
RAmELH

2013
Z§-=

10.1%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

54.9%

100%

94.9%

54.9%

54.9%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

5.0%

100%

5%.0%

5.0%

5.0%

Principal activities

IERH

Provision of consulting Services,
data processing and
selling activities
RUBRRE  BERER
HEED

Information technology development
EREARR

Ivestment holding

Provision of internet related services

REERBERRY

Internet operafions

EBBEE

Investment n telecommunications networks
FEBERE

Ivestment holding

Trading of pagers and provision of messaging
services
BEETERRRBRRS

Investment holding

Provision of treasury Services

ERITRE

Provision of treasury services
REEHRS

—E-=FEH
aEnEamaRAs J9
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. TEMBEATE-#
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMEL/ ERTRAEE/ RAREEERS
WEARZR gt Rali-e RAEELH TBER
2013 012
“g-= —I—F
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRERERLA Bk LERET Lok RERR
KTT (Cook Istands) Limited* Cook slands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREE HK$10,000 HK$10,000 REER
LER il
10,0007 10,0008
Lucky (Macao Commercial Qffshore) Limited Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consuting services, research
RAERERBERBERLA AR MOP100000  MOP100,000 and development, and trading of cufural
ERR Lk roducts
AFTRI0000E  ZFT100 0008 REBERE FERAE
HREEX(LER
Lucky Success Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERERLA Bk EBRIET LiEkodn nERE
Lucky Tong Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BERERRAA & LA SRkoEn I
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0%  Investment holding
HEHE £5,500,002 £5,500,002 RERR
ERR Lk
550000258 550000058
Marcotts Limited Samoa Ordinary USS1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEGHS EERET  EERiER RERR
Muttone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0%  Investment holding, design and manufacture of
Af £3,830,107 £3,830,107 communication systems and equipment
LER LR RERR REHREERE
IBI0TRE  3830,107E5 FSHE
Mulitone Electronics Scn. Bh. Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0% - Manufacture of communication systems and
ERAD MR285,000 1IR285,000 equipment
LER il EERRRGNRE
BEOSREET 2850005
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 54.9% 55.0%  Distrbution of communication systems and
28 £1,022,584 €1,022,584 equipment
LRk Lk DEREZRRE

1025848 1022584801
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. FEMBAR =
Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company
EDREEERS

Place of incorporation/
operations
AL/

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

HEARARE

New Telecomm Company Limited
HEEAERAA

Peak Vantage Limited

Pear Deltalnc.

(0KK.COM Limited

gy

Hong Kong
B

Bitish Virgin Islands/Macau
SRERREE/ AR

Samoa/Macau
EETHE/ N

Hong Kong
(2]

Shenzhen Hengyu Science and Technology Company PRC

Limitedt
BENF(RINERA A

Siverstrand Investments Limited

Smart Delta Inc.

Smart (Macao Commercial Offshore) Liited
ERRMEREERE)ERAA

Suceess (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited

RYEFREARRFARAT

Top Gallop International Limited

Very Happy Intemational Limited
REERARAR

E

Samoa
EETES

Samoa
EEDES

Macau
3]

Macau
-1

Brtish Virgin Islands
ERERRHR

Hong Kong
(3]

Nominal valug of

issued share capital/

registered capital

ERARAEE/

Rali-e

2013 2012
5= —Z—F
Ordinary Ordinary
HK$6,000,000  HKS6,000,000
EER il
6000000 6,000,000
Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US§1
LERET  SEREn
Ordinary US$1~ Ordinary USS1
LERET  SERER
Ordinary HKS2 ~ Ordinary HK$2
LERoET  SERoER
Registered capital  Registered capital
RMB24,000,000  RMB24,000,000
ERER ias
AREA00008  AR240000008
Ordinary US$1~ Ordinary USS1
LERET  fRRER
Ordinary USS1~ Ordinary USSH1
LEREn  SEkiEn
Ordinary Ordinary
MOP100,000 MOP100,000
LER Lk
HFI10000081 2791000008
Ordinary Ordinary
M0P100,000 MOP100,000
EBR LR
HFI1000008  RFI4100000E
Ordinary US$1~ Ordinary USS1
LERET  SERER
Ordinary HKS2 ~~ Ordinary HK$2
LERoET  SERoER

BAmELH

2013
“E-=F

100%

94.9%

54.9%

100%

424"

54.9%

54.9%

54.9%

54.9%

100%

100%

212
—5-f

100%

5.0%

5.0%

100%

400%*

5.0%

55.0%

5.0%

5.0%

100%

100%

IERH

Trading in telecommunications equipment and
provision of related services
BEERRRNIRY
S

Provision of treasury Services

REHTRY

Provision of treasury services
RUSTHRE

Provision of e-commerce, m-commerce and
nteret based activities

RS THE  TBEER
BERAELRE

Ivestment holding

Ivestment holding

Provision of treasury Services
RS

Provision of services, software licensing and
{rading in communication systems

RURE  BHETERER
BEZARAE

Provision of consuing services, research
and development and trading of cuftral
products

RUERRE R
HREEXER

Investment holding

Property investment

menmxmaman |0



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2013 B2 =Z—=F~A=+HLFE

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. TEMBEATE-#
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HEL/ ERTRAEE/ EAREEERS
WEARZR B Rali-e RAEELH TEER
2013 2012
“g-= —T—F
Victory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of services, software licensing and
ERRMEREERK)ARLAT 2R MOP100,000 MOP100,000 trading in communicaton systems and
LER il equipment
AFIE1000008  EF5E100000E RERH - GHETER
EERRZNREA
Wollaston Limited Samoa Ordinary USS1 Ordinary USS1 54.9% 55.0%  Ivestment holding
EELHS LEmzn Rk RERR
¥28.00MInc. Bittish Virgin slands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS$1 100% 100% - Provision of e-commerce, m-commerce and
i LERET  SRRER intemet based actives
REESTHE  RYHER
ERRARRE
Y28,00M Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce m-commerce and
HS%ERAT Bk thRoET  LERoET intemet based acties
REETHE  RIBHER
ERERARE
Y28 Innovations* Caymanslands Ordinary HK$0.1~ Ordinary HKSO0.1 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce, m-commerce, and
GEEES ERROIET  ERROET infemet based acties
RUETEE NIHER
ERARRE
Zonal Care Incorporated Biitsh Virgin Islands/acau~~~ Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2 54.9% 55.0%  Strategic ivestments in advanced technology
RBhERES /BN LEREn  SEReAn and e-commerog projects, and provison of
{reasury senvices
REMERETALERL
REUERE - RRESBRS
* Directly held by the Company. * BAARBEERE ©
# Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years o 2EIECE  FHA_ZTT=FTA+L
commencing from 17 October 2003. H #5204 o
a Kantone holds 77.2% (2012: 72.7%) equity interest in these A ERBAZERRATII2%(ZT—=F :
companies, hence they are accounted for as subsidiaries of 72.7%) Z BRANKE RS - MELARAR SN SR B 2 Y
the Group. B -

’] 02 CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each
of the above-mentioned subsidiaries entitled the holders
thereof to:

(@  a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5%
per annum for any financial year of the company in
question in respect of which the net profits of such
company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b) on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid up on
such shares out of the surplus assets of the company
in question after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding up in respect of
each of the ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities subsisting at 30 June 2013 or at any time during
the year.

RS ERA 2 Bt X KSR B 2 EERIS I
TESA AR

@  fERRA B EAE A — A8 B 2 AR A
## %8 100,000,000,000 % 7T B+ A% 2~
AR E BOE C ERIFRTBME + &

b RARIERE - FRZERTHEZAF
& % A A% 2 K 4 $8100,000,000,000
AL - BRARZFMBETREZ
FRM BB

ERAVNARABMB AR HEERRERNFE
EEABAYENERAEEEEFEEANLL
BEMBAE - EEZRA - MEEMLHERR
ZFE—HEIE - BIE S ERBRILE -

B EXHEEN  EMBRRANR-F—=FX
A=+ B F RIS EEAERTES

=% =rrE ()]



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

RESULTS E |
Year ended 30 June
BERB=TRLEE
2013 2012 2009 2007 2005 2004
=Rz %-- ZETLE CTTF CTRRE CRINF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR BT Tér TEr  TEr  TiEn
TURNOVER 2EE 4452636 3410999 3125455 3011768 2923103 3635049 3164267 2,996,668 2461710 2249968
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BHRBRERAR
BEFORE TAXATION
Proftrom operating activies excludng  AEFEMAETEE 7
other operating ftems BELER 20430 201886 161033 20091 403130 994804 923140 762470 610013 468476
(Other operating items EMTETER (184456) (104174 (657200 (85,800  (298850) (737526  (91071) (88124 (36,429 (10449
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BRI 99,934 97,712 %313 124151 104200 267278 832060 704346 573984 363,984
TAXATION e - 167 13 (121) (1,062 (2,063 917 (89) (17) (704
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEEEF 99,934 97,879 95446 124030 103218 295215 822898 704261 573067 363,280
ATTRIBUTABLE T0: JElG :
Qwners of the company NG ZPN 62,618 62478 56,763 88,649 TAGY 190456 626818 549994 458726 296550
Non-controllin nterests SRR RER 31,316 35401 36,683 35,381 26,588 64799 196080 154267 114341 66,730
99,934 97879 9446 124030 103218 25215 822898 704261 573067 363280
DIVIDENDS e 18,570 24,261 43,251 2204 19,968 48,112 96,686 73,096 59,867 55,304
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 30 June
RAB=TH
2013 012 2011 2009 2008
“F-ZF C3-2F CT—F
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS 000 HK§000
THn T BT T AT
TOTAL ASSETS EEGE 9400381 9327500 9349104 8967425 8871166 8446159 7657367 6463200 5,961,080 4945942
TOTAL LIABILITIES =l 404308 405768 513452 569892 589361 630554 463346 309558 396021 306,934
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS kxgs 9004983 8921741 8835602 8307533 8281805 7815605 7194021 6003642 5,165,061 4589008
EQUITY ATTRBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF KA RJEA A
THE COMPANY il 2y 7506177 7450716 738223 7062217 6973345 6,685,006 6,137,672 5268760 4704867 4232113
SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT RESERVE OF -HIAMEARZ
ALISTED SUBSIDIARY TEREGE - - - - - - 4639 1,850 1850 -
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS SRR RS 1498806 1471025 1453420 12335256 1308460 1130599 1061710 833082 458344 356895
9004983 8921741 8835602 8397533 8281805 7815605 7194021 6003642 5,165,061 4589008
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RAENX

FEHITES
B’
BYEHITES
w|me

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT

Frank BLEACKLEY

DRME
REE

EREES

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT(Z 5 &3 /%)

Hig
Frank BLEACKLEY
B

=

FMRER
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

EER D
M

JERPY

10 F4b R E244-24658
PSS @R

17HEJ PR

&M

Multitone House
Shortwood Copse Lane
Kempshott, Basingstoke
Hampshire, RG23 7NL
United Kingdom
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% $538889%

Ko EH1E35H
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited*
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

*  Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited 2 /2 &) % f8 520134
9 A30H ¥ K AMUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited ©
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